
 

Thursday, March 28, 2024 
9:00 A.M. 

BOARD ROOM 
4800 Fournace Place, Bellaire, TX 77401 

The meeting may be viewed online: http://harrishealthtx.swagit.com/live. 

*Notice: Some Board Members may participate by videoconference. 

Mission 
Harris Health is a community-focused academic healthcare system dedicated to improving the health of those most in 
need in Harris County through quality care delivery, coordination of care and education. 

AGENDA 

I.  Call to Order and Record of Attendance Dr. Andrea Caracostis 1 min 

II.  Approval of the Minutes of Previous Meeting 

• Board Meeting – February 29, 2024 

Dr. Andrea Caracostis 1 min 

III.  Announcements / Special Presentations Dr. Andrea Caracostis 15 min 

 A. CEO Report Including Special Announcements – Dr. Esmaeil Porsa 

• Introduction of Mr. Micah Rodriguez, Vice President of Public Policy and 
Government Relations 

• Harris Health Endoscopy Center at Quentin Mease Ribbon Cutting 

 (10 min) 

 B. Board Member Announcements Regarding Board Member Advocacy and 
Community Engagements 

• Harris County LGBQTIA+ Commission 

Dr. Cody Pyke (5 min) 

IV.  Public Comment Dr. Andrea Caracostis 3 min 

V.  Executive Session Dr. Andrea Caracostis 30 min 

 A. Report Regarding Quality of Medical and Healthcare, Pursuant to Tex. Health 
& Safety Code Ann. §161.032, Tex. Occ. Code Ann. §160.007, and Tex. Occ. 
Code Ann. §151.002 to Receive Peer Review and/or Medical Committee 
Report, Including Report of the Medical Executive Board in Connection with 
the Evaluation of the Quality of Medical and Healthcare Services, Including 
the Harris Health System Quality, Safety Performance Measures, and 
Possible Action Regarding this Matter Upon Return to Open Session 
– Dr. Andrea Caracostis, Dr. Steven Brass and Dr. Yashwant Chathampally 

 

 

 (10 min) 

1

http://harrishealthtx.swagit.com/live


Board of Trustees I Board Meeting Agenda 
March 28, 2024 

Page 2 of 4 

 B. Medical Executive Board Report and Credentialing Discussion, Pursuant to 
Tex. Health & Safety Code Ann. §161.032, Tex. Occ. Code Ann. §160.007, and 
Tex. Occ. Code Ann. §151.002 to Receive Peer Review and/or Medical 
Committee Report, Including Consideration of Approval of Credentialing 
Changes for Members of the Harris Health System Medical Staff 
– Dr. Martha Mims and Dr. Bradford Scott 

 (10 min) 

 C. Report Regarding Harris Health System Correctional Health Quality of 
Medical and Healthcare, Including Credentialing Discussion and Operational 
Updates, Pursuant to Tex. Health & Safety Code Ann. §161.032, Tex. Occ. 
Code Ann. §160.007, Tex. Occ. Code Ann. §151.002 and Tex. Gov’t Code Ann. 
§551.071 to Receive Peer Review and/or Medical Committee Report with 
Possible Action Upon Return to Open Session – Dr. Otis Egins 

 (10 min) 

VI.  Reconvene to Open Meeting Dr. Andrea Caracostis 1 min 

VII.  General Action Item(s) Dr. Andrea Caracostis 6 min 

 A. General Action Item(s) Related to Quality: Medical Staff   

 1. Consideration of Approval of Credentialing Changes for Members of the 
Harris Health System Medical Staff – Dr. Martha Mims 

 (2 min) 

 2. Consideration of Approval of Changes to the Nephrology Clinical 
Privileges – Dr. Martha Mims 

 (2 min) 

 B. General Action Item(s) Related to Quality: Correctional Health Medical Staff   

 1. Consideration of Approval of Credentialing Changes for Members of the 
Harris Health System Correctional Health Medical Staff – Dr. Otis Egins 

 (2 min) 

VIII.  New Items for Board Consideration Dr. Andrea Caracostis 5 min 

 A. Consideration of Approval of the Appointment of Dr. Cody Pyke, Ms. Sima 
Ladjevardian and Ms. Ingrid Robinson as Members of the Dialysis Center at 
Quentin Mease Governing Body 

Dr. Andrea Caracostis  

IX.  Strategic Discussion Dr. Andrea Caracostis 30 min 

 A. Harris Health System Strategic Plan Initiatives   

 1. Presentation Regarding Innovative Partnership to Build Structures and 
Processes that Facilitate Timely Enrollment and Access to Care in the 
Harris Health System for Under-insured Adolescents and Young Adults 
with Chronic Illness – Dr. Albert Hergenroeder, Texas Children’s Hospital 
[Strategic Pillar 4: Population Health Management] 

 (15 min) 

 B. March Board Committee Meeting Reports: 

• Governance Committee – Dr. Cody Pyke 
• Quality Committee – Dr. Andrea Caracostis 
• Joint Conference Committee – Dr. Andrea Caracostis 
• DEI Committee – Ms. Marcia Johnson 

 

 

 (15 min) 

2



Board of Trustees I Board Meeting Agenda 
March 28, 2024 

Page 3 of 4 

Dr. Andrea Caracostis 5 min X. Consent Agenda Items

A. Consent Purchasing Recommendations

1. Consideration of Approval of Purchasing Recommendations
(Items A1 through A60) – Mr. DeWight Dopslauf and Mr. Jack Adger, 
Harris County Purchasing Office
(See Attached Expenditure Summary: March 28, 2024)

B. Consent Committee Recommendations

1. Consideration of Acceptance to Adopt June 1st as an Internal Completion 
Deadline for the Texas Pension Review Board Training
[Governance Committee]

2. Consideration of Approval of the 2024 Quality Committee Goals
[Quality Committee]

C. New Consent Items for Board Approval

1. Consideration of Acceptance of the Harris Health System January 2024 
Financial Report Subject to Audit – Ms. Victoria Nikitin

2. Consideration of Approval to Enter into a New Interlocal Agreement with 
Harris County Department of Economic Equity and Opportunity (DEEO) 
to Provide Wage Rate Compliance Services for Harris Health System 
Construction Projects – Mr. Louis Smith and Mr. Patrick Casey

3. Consideration of Approval to Amend and Renew the Lease with 
Benjamin Wu for the Sunset Heights Clinic, Located at 1623 Airline, 
Houston, TX 77009 – Mr. Louis Smith and Mr. Patrick Casey

4. Consideration of Approval to Convey a Non-Exclusive Utility Easement 
and Right of Way to Crown Castle Fiber, LLC at Lyndon B. Johnson 
Hospital, 5656 Kelly St., Houston, TX 77026
– Mr. Louis Smith and Mr. Patrick Casey

5. Consideration of Approval to Amend the Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery 
Services Agreement with The University of Texas Health Science Center 
at Houston – Dr. Jennifer Small and Ms. Binta Baudy

6. Consideration of Approval to Amend the Administrative Services 
Agreement Between Harris Health System and Community Health 
Choice, Inc. and Community Health Choice Texas, Inc.
– Ms. Lisa Wright, CEO, Mr. Chris Buley, CLO, Community Health Choice, 
and Ms. Holly Gummert

D. Consent Reports and Updates to the Board

1. Updates Regarding Pending State and Federal Legislative and Policy 

Issues Impacting Harris Health System – Mr. R. King Hillier

{End of Consent Agenda}

3



Board of Trustees I Board Meeting Agenda 
March 28, 2024 

Page 4 of 4 

 

XI.  Item(s) Related to the Health Care for the Homeless Program Dr. Andrea Caracostis 15 min 

 A. Review and Acceptance of the Following Reports for the Health Care for the 
Homeless Program (HCHP) as Required by the United States Department of 
Health and Human Services, which Provides Funding to the Harris County 
Hospital District d/b/a/Harris Health System to Provide Health Services to 
Persons Experiencing Homelessness under Section 330(h) of the Public 
Health Service Act – Dr. Jennifer Small and Ms. Tracey Burdine 

• HCHP March 2024 Operational Update 

 (13 min) 

 B. Consideration of Approval of the HCHP Quality Management Report 
– Dr. Jennifer Small and Ms. Tracey Burdine 

 (1 min) 

 C. Consideration of Approval of the HCHP Patient Satisfaction Report 
– Dr. Jennifer Small and Ms. Tracey Burdine 

 (1 min) 

XII.  Executive Session Dr. Andrea Caracostis 50 min 

 D. Review of the Impact of Health and Human Services Commission’s Intent for 
Contract Announcement (STAR & CHIP) and Community Health Choice’s 
2023 Financial Performance, Pursuant to Tex. Gov’t Code Ann. §551.085 
– Ms. Lisa Wright, CEO and Ms. Anna Mateja, CFO, Community Health 
Choice 

 (10 min) 

 E. Consultation with Attorney, Pursuant to Tex. Gov’t Code Ann. §551.071, 
Regarding Civil Action No. 4:23-CV-03198, U.S. District Court, Southern 
District of Texas, and Possible Action Regarding this Matter Upon Return to 
Open Session – Ms. Ebon Swofford and Mr. Michael Fritz 

 (5 min) 

 F. Consultation with Attorney Regarding the Texas Commission on 
Environmental Quality (TCEQ) Approval for Texas Coastal Materials, LLC to 
Operate a Concrete Crushing Facility at 5875 Kelley Street, Houston, Texas 
and Possible Action Upon Return to Open Session, Including Consideration of 
Approval to Seek Judicial Review of the TCEQ Decision 
– Ms. Sarah Utley, Harris County Attorney’s Office 

 (10 min) 

 G. Report by the Executive Vice President, Chief Compliance and Risk Officer, 
Regarding Compliance with Medicare, Medicaid, HIPAA and Other Federal 
and State Health Care Program Requirements, Including Status of Fraud and 
Abuse Investigations, Pursuant to Tex. Health & Safety Code Ann. §161.032 
– Ms. Carolynn Jones 

 (10 min) 

 H. Review of Harris Health System Organization Structure and Compensation 
Reports per Article X, Section 1.c of Harris Health System Bylaws, Pursuant to 
Tex. Gov’t Code Ann. §551.074, and Possible Action Regarding this Matter 
Upon Return to Open Session – Mr. Omar Reid 

 (15 min) 

XIII.  Reconvene Dr. Andrea Caracostis 1 min 

XIV.  Adjournment Dr. Andrea Caracostis 1 min 

4



 
MINUTES OF THE HARRIS HEALTH SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Board Meeting 
Thursday, February 29, 2024 

9:00 am 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION/RECOMMENDATION 

I. Call to Order and 
Record of 
Attendance 

The meeting was called to order at 9:06 a.m. by Andrea Caracostis, MD, MPH, Chair.  It was noted that a 
quorum was present and the attendance was recorded.  Dr. Caracostis stated while some of Board 
members are in the room with us today, others will participate by videoconference as permissible by state 
law and the Harris Health Videoconferencing Policy.  The meeting may be viewed online: 
http://harrishealthtx.swagit.com/live. 

A copy of the attendance is 
appended to the archived 
minutes. 

II. Approval of the 
Minutes of Previous 
Meeting  

 

• Board Meeting – January 25, 2024 
 
 

Motion No.  24.02-19 
Moved by Ms. Jennifer Tijerina, 
seconded by Ms. Afsheen Davis, 
and unanimously passed that 
the Board approve the minutes 
of the January 25, 2024 meeting.  
Motion carried. 

III. Announcements/ 
Special 
Presentations 

A. CEO Report Including Special Announcements  
 
• New Member of the Harris Health Board of Trustees  

 
Dr. Esmaeil Porsa, President and Chief Executive Officer (CEO), delivered the CEO Report, including 
special announcements.  He noted that Harris Health System launched its Hospital at Home 
service, which is a program that gives patients needing hospital – level care the opportunity to 
receive it at home.  Key highlights include: 

• The Hospital-at-Home service can be a great fit for some patients.  
• There is no extra charge for patients to complete their hospital level care in the comfort of 

their home.  
• The quality of care is consistent with care in a hospital building, with proven cost savings, 

lower average length of stay, and fewer adverse effects.  
• Patients in the program will have 24/7 access to a healthcare provider using MyChart Bedside 

on a provided tablet.   
 
 

 

As Presented.   

5

http://harrishealthtx.swagit.com/live
http://harrishealthtx.swagit.com/live


Minutes of the Board of Trustees Board Meeting – February 29, 2024 
Page 2 of 12 
 

Dr. Porsa reported that Lyndon B. Johnson (LBJ) Hospital leadership has embarked on the second 
iteration of their “Beyond the Bedside” Bus Tour of Northeast Houston.  The Bus Tour is designed 
to demonstrate LBJ’s commitment to the community and to appreciate just how far LBJ’s impact 
extends.  Dr. Porsa was pleased to recognized Ms. Ingrid Robinson, as the newest member of the 
Board of Trustees.  Ms. Robinson is the CEO and President of the Houston Minority Supplier 
Development Council.  She received her Bachelor of Science degree from the University of 
Houston and her Master of Business Administration from Rice University. 

 B. Board Member Announcements Regarding Board Member Advocacy and Community Engagements 
 
Ms. Sima Ladjevardian provided an update regarding a meeting held between Harris Health leadership 
and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), related to the proposed concrete crushing plant 
across from LBJ Hospital.   

As Presented.  

IV. Public Comment  Ms. Cynthia Cole, Executive Director, Local #1550 – AFSCME, American Federation of State, County, and 
Municipal Employees, addressed the Board regarding Harris Health’s grievance procedure and attendance 
policy.   

As Presented. 

V. Executive Session At 9:16 a.m., Dr. Caracostis stated that the Board would enter into Executive Session for Items                             
V. ‘A through C’ as permitted by law under Tex. Health & Safety Code Ann. §161.032, Tex. Occ. Ann. 
§§151.002 and 160.007, and Tex. Gov’t. Code Ann. §551.071.  

 

 A. Report Regarding Quality of Medical and Healthcare, Pursuant to Tex. Health & Safety Code Ann. 
§161.032, Tex. Occ. Code Ann. §160.007, and Tex. Occ. Code Ann. §151.002 to Receive Peer Review 
and/or Medical Committee Report, Including Report of the Medical Executive Board in Connection 
with the Evaluation of the Quality of Medical and Healthcare Services, Including the Harris Health 
System Quality, Safety Performance Measures, and Possible Action Regarding this Matter Upon Return 
to Open Session. 

No Action Taken.   

 B. Medical Executive Board Report and Credentialing Discussion, Pursuant to Tex. Health & Safety Code 
Ann. §161.032, Tex. Occ. Code Ann. §160.007, and Tex. Occ. Code Ann. §151.002 to Receive Peer 
Review and/or Medical Committee Report, Including Consideration of Approval of Credentialing 
Changes for Members of the Harris Health System Medical Staff. 
 

No Action Taken.   

 C. Report Regarding Harris Health System Correctional Health Quality of Medical and Healthcare, 
Including Credentialing Discussion and Operational Updates, Pursuant to Tex. Health & Safety Code 
Ann. §161.032, Tex. Occ. Code Ann. §160.007, Tex. Occ. Code Ann. §151.002 and Tex. Gov’t Code Ann. 
§551.071 to Receive Peer Review and/or Medical Committee Report with Possible Action Upon Return 
to Open Session. 

No Action Taken.   

6



Minutes of the Board of Trustees Board Meeting – February 29, 2024 
Page 3 of 12 
 

VI. Reconvene to Open 
Meeting 

At 9:30 a.m., Dr. Caracostis reconvened the meeting in open session; she noted that a quorum was present 
and that no action was taken in Executive Session. 

 

VII. General Action 
Item(s) 

  

 A. General Action Item(s) Related to Quality: Medical Staff  

 1. Approval of Credentialing Changes for Members of the Harris Health System Medical Staff 
 
Dr. Martha Mims, Chair, Medical Executive Board, presented the credentialing changes for 
members of the Harris Health System Medical Staff.  For February 2024, there were twenty – four 
(24) initial appointments, thirty – eight (38) reappointments, one (1) change/add privilege, twelve 
(12) resignations, and twelve (12) applications for temporary privileges. A copy of the credentialing 
report is available in the permanent record. 

Motion No.  24.02-20 
Moved by Ms. Afsheen Davis, 
seconded by Ms. Sima 
Ladjevardian, and unanimously 
passed that the Board approve 
agenda item VII.A.1.  Motion 
carried.   

 B. General Action Item(s) Related to Quality: Correctional Health Medical Staff  

 1. Approval of Credentialing Changes for Members of the Harris Health System Correctional Health 
Medical Staff 
 
Dr. Otis Egins, Chief Medical Officer, Harris Health Correctional Health, presented the credentialing 
changes for members of the Harris Health System Correctional Health Medical Staff.   For February 
2024, there were seven (7) initial appointments, twenty – one (21) reappointments, and two (2) 
resignations.   A copy of the credentialing report is available in the permanent record. 

Motion No.  24.02-21 
Moved by Dr. Cody Pyke, 
seconded by Ms. Jennifer 
Tijerina, and unanimously 
passed that the Board approve 
agenda item VII.B.1.  Motion 
carried.   
 

 C. General Action Item(s) Related to Community Health Choice  

 1.  Review and Discussion Regarding Collaboration Initiatives Between Community Health Choice and 
Harris Health System, Including Hospital at Home and House Calls 
 
Ms. Lisa Wright, President and CEO, Community Health Choice, delivered a presentation 
regarding collaboration initiatives between Community Health and Harris Health System. She 
shared that the STAR-Plus Membership will present opportunities to leverage partnerships 
between Harris Health and CHC as well as provide meaningful outcomes.  Dr. Marylou Buyse, 
Chief Medical Officer, Community Health Choice, provided a high-level overview of the scope of 
the House Call Service and Hospital at Home programs.  A copy of the presentation is available in 
the permanent record. 
 

 

As Presented.   

7



Minutes of the Board of Trustees Board Meeting – February 29, 2024 
Page 4 of 12 
 

VIII. New Items for 
Board 
Consideration 

  

 A. Approval of the Appointment of Ms. Carol Paret as Chair, and Ms. Afsheen Davis as a Member of the 
Board of Trustees Compliance & Audit Committee  
 

 

Motion No.  24.02-22 
Moved by Dr. Cody Pyke, 
seconded by Ms. Sima 
Ladjevardian, and unanimously 
passed that the Board approve 
agenda item VIII.A.  Motion 
carried.   

 B. Approval of Construction Manager at Risk for the Construction of the Lyndon B. Johnson Hospital 
Replacement Project for Harris Health System 
 
Mr. DeWight Dopslauf, Purchasing Agent, Harris County Purchasing Office, recommended approval of 
an award on the basis of highest overall evaluation for McCarthy Building Companies, Inc., to provide a 
Construction Manager at Risk for Lyndon B. Johnson Replacement Project, in the amount of 
$64,750,00.  The Minority/Woman-owned Business Enterprises (MWBE) participation goal is 35%.  A 
copy of the purchasing recommendations is available in the permanent record.    

Motion No.  24.02-23 
Moved by Ms. Afsheen Davis, 
seconded by Ms. Jennifer 
Tijerina, and unanimously 
passed that the Board approve 
agenda item VIII.B.  Motion 
carried.   
 

 C. Approval of Construction Manager at Risk for the Construction of Central Utility Plant at Lyndon B. 
Johnson Hospital for Harris Health System 
 
Mr. DeWight Dopslauf, Purchasing Agent, Harris County Purchasing Office, recommended approval of 
an award on the basis of highest overall evaluation for Tellepsen Builders, L.P., to provide a 
Construction Manager at Risk for the Central Utility Plant at Lyndon B. Johnson Replacement Project, 
in the amount of $4,480,781.  The MWBE participation goal is 35%.  A copy of the purchasing 
recommendations is available in the permanent record.    

Motion No.  24.02-24 
Moved by Ms. Jennifer Tijerina, 
seconded by Dr. Cody Pyke, and 
unanimously passed that the 
Board approve agenda item 
VIII.C.  Motion carried.   
 

 D. Approval of Award for Parking Garage Demolition and Sitework at Lyndon B. Johnson Hospital for 
Harris Health System 
 
Mr. DeWight Dopslauf, Purchasing Agent, Harris County Purchasing Office, recommended approval of 
an award on the basis of lowest priced proposal meeting requirements for O’Donnell Snider 
Construction, LLC., to provide general early site work to prepare for the upcoming new LBJ Hospital, 
North Garage, and Central Utility Plant (CUP) projects, in the amount of $3,085,316. The owner 
contingency provides for coverage on unanticipated costs throughout the construction project. The 
MWBE participation goal is 30%.  A copy of the purchasing recommendations is available in the 
permanent record.    

Motion No.  24.02-25 
Moved by Ms. Jennifer Tijerina, 
seconded by Ms. Sima 
Ladjevardian, and unanimously 
passed that the Board approve 
agenda item VIII.D.  Motion 
carried.   
 

8



Minutes of the Board of Trustees Board Meeting – February 29, 2024 
Page 5 of 12 
 

 E. Approval of Award for Construction of New Parking Garage at Lyndon B. Johnson Hospital for Harris 
Health System 
 
Mr. DeWight Dopslauf, Purchasing Agent, Harris County Purchasing Office, recommended approval of 
an award on the basis of lowest priced proposal meeting requirements for O’Donnell Snider 
Construction, LLC., to construct a 255,767 square foot new garage and precast parking structure that 
contains offices, MEP rooms, I.T. rooms, and space designated for future community retail 
development at LBJ Hospital, in the amount of $35,975,624. The owner contingency provides for 
coverage on unanticipated costs throughout the construction project. The MWBE participation goal is 
30%.   A copy of the purchasing recommendations is available in the permanent record.    

Motion No.  24.02-26 
Moved by Mr. Jim Robinson, 
seconded by Ms. Jennifer 
Tijerina, and unanimously 
passed that the Board approve 
agenda item VIII.E.  Motion 
carried.   
 

IX. Strategic Discussion    

 A. Harris Health System Strategic Plan Initiatives  

 1. Presentation Regarding Update on Strategic Facilities Plan and Debt Issuance  
 
Mr. Louis Smith, Senior Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer, delivered an update on 
the Strategic Facilities Plan and Debt Issuance.  Mr. Smith presented an overview of the Strategic 
Facilities Plan timeline.  Mr. Jim Robinson recommended including covered sidewalks from the 
metro bus stop to the towers at LBJ Hospital in the current Facilities Plan.  Dr. Porsa stated that 
Harris Health is working in partnership with the Metropolitan Transit Authority of Harris County 
(Houston Metro) to ensure safety and that patients’ needs are met.  Ms. Victoria Nikitin, Executive 
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Ms. Paige Abernathy, Assistant County Attorney, Harris 
County Attorney’s Office, presented a high – level overview of the debt issuance timeline.                 
Mr. Smith shared next steps on vendor selections and approval of the construction contracts.  The 
LBJ Hospital Campus Groundbreaking will be held on May 9, 2024 from 10:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m.        
A copy of the presentation is available in the permanent record.   

As Presented.  

 2. Approval of Revisions to the Harris County Purchasing Manual 
 
Ms. Sara Thomas, Chief Legal Officer, Harris County Attorney’s Office, delivered a presentation 
regarding revisions to the Harris County Purchasing Manual.  She provided an overview of the 
drivers for change, goals, and benefits associated with the Purchasing Manual.  Ms. Holly 
Gummert, Deputy Division Director, Harris County Attorney’s Office, presented key procurement 
policy changes, anticipated impacts of the changes and future purchasing items through Fiscal Year 
2024. Discussion ensued related to Harris County’s procurement process.  A copy of the Harris 
County Purchasing Manual is available in the permanent record.    

Motion No.  24.02-27 
Moved by Ms. Ingrid Robinson, 
seconded by Dr. Cody Pyke, and 
unanimously passed that the 
Board approve agenda item 
IX.A.2.  Motion carried.   
 

9



Minutes of the Board of Trustees Board Meeting – February 29, 2024 
Page 6 of 12 
 

 B. February Board Committee Meeting Reports  
 

Quality Committee  
Ms. Carol Paret stated that the following highlights were covered in open session of the Quality 
Committee Meeting held on February 13, 2024: 
• The monthly High Reliability Organization (HRO) Video “Systems Approach” was displayed. 

 
Budget & Finance Committee  
Ms. Paret shared that the Budget and Finance Committee met on February 15, 2024, and the 
following topics were covered: 
• Ms. Victoria Nikitin, Chief Financial Officer, delivered a presentation of the Harris Health System 

First Quarter Fiscal Year 2024 Investment Report. 
• Ms. Nikitin presented on the Harris Health System Fourth Quarter Calendar Year 2023 Pension 

Plan Report. 
• Ms. Nikitin presented on the Harris Health System December 2023 Quarterly Financial Report 

Subject to Audit. 
• Mr. Cory Myers, Senior Consultant, Aon, presented on the Harris County Hospital District Pension 

Plan Investment Practices and Performance Evaluation as of the Year Ended December 31, 2023 as 
required by the Texas Pension Review Board. 

• The Committee moved to recommend approval of Community Health Choice, Inc., 2024 Insurance 
Renewals to the Harris Health System Board of Trustees.  

 
Compliance & Audit Committee  
Ms. Paret noted that the Compliance and Audit Committee met on February 15, 2024, and the 
following topics were covered: 
• A presentation regarding the Harris Health System Independent Auditor’s Report and Overview for 

the Year Ended September 30, 2023 was presented by Mr. Chris Clark with Forvis.  Mr. Clark 
reported that there were no identified material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal 
controls.   

• Internal Audit Quarterly Update:  
o Overview of completed engagement – Follow-up on Correctional Health Pharmacy, Nursing, & 

Infection Prevention Assessment. 
o Overview of in-progress engagements – Six engagements were in progress (Baylor Provider 

Invoicing; Medical Device Security; MWBE Program & Policy; HIPAA Privacy Controls; Benefits 
Eligibility; and Nursing Licenses) and are expected to be reported at the May 2024 Compliance 
and Audit Committee Meeting.  

o Summary of outstanding management action plans (MAPs) – There were 11 outstanding MAPs 
from six prior audits (UT Provider Invoicing; Vendor Payment Timeliness; Procurement; 
Telemedicine; Business Continuity & Disaster Recovery; and Follow-up on Guidehouse Grant 

As Reported.  

10



Minutes of the Board of Trustees Board Meeting – February 29, 2024 
Page 7 of 12 
 

Accounting Process Assessment). This includes four past-due, high-priority MAPs.  
o Knowledge sharing – 2024 Global Internal Audit Standards. 

 
Ms. Paret stated that the following items were recommended by the Committee for approval to the 
full Board of Trustees and will appear on the Board’s Consent Agenda for approval: 
• Harris Health System Independent Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements for the Year Ended 

September 30, 2023. 
• Harris Health System Single Audit Report of Federal and State Award Programs for the Year Ended 

September 30, 2023. 
 
Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion (DEI) Committee  
Ms. Jennifer Tijerina stated that the Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion (DEI) Committee met on February 
16, 2024, and the following topics were covered: 
• Mr. Derek Holmes, Vice President, Contract Administration and Contract Diversity, delivered an 

update regarding Harris Health’s Minority/Woman-owned Business Enterprises (MWBE) Program.  
• Dr. Esperanza “Hope” Galvan, Vice President, Population Health Transformation, delivered an 

update regarding Harris Health’s Food Farmacy Program. 
• Dr. Jobi Martinez, Vice President, Chief Diversity Officer, delivered a presentation regarding the 

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion (DEI) Employee Engagement Data Analysis. 
 

X. Consent Agenda 
Items  

  

 A. Consent Purchasing Recommendations   

 1. Approval of Purchasing Recommendations (Items A1 through A56)  
 
Mr. Jack Adger, Assistant Purchasing Agent, Harris County Purchasing Office, presented a 
modification to purchasing agenda item A1 related to Sierra7, Inc., from the amount of 
$11,200,000 to the revised amount of $11,281,790.  A copy of the purchasing recommendations is 
available in the permanent record.    

 

Motion No.  24.02-28 
Moved by Dr. Cody Pyke, 
seconded by Ms. Sima 
Ladjevardian, and unanimously 
passed that the Board approve 
agenda item X.A.1., with noted 
modifications to item A1 of the 
purchasing agenda.  Motion 
carried.   

 B. Consent Committee Recommendations   
 
 

11



Minutes of the Board of Trustees Board Meeting – February 29, 2024 
Page 8 of 12 
 

 1. Approval of the 2024 Quality Committee Reporting Schedule  
 

Motion No.  24.02-29 
Moved by Ms. Afsheen Davis, 
seconded by Dr. Cody Pyke, and 
unanimously passed that the 
Board approve agenda item 
X.B.1. through X.D.3. Motion 
carried.   

 2. Acceptance of the Harris Health System First Quarter Fiscal Year 2024 Investment Report Motion No.  24.02-29 
Moved by Ms. Afsheen Davis, 
seconded by Dr. Cody Pyke, and 
unanimously passed that the 
Board approve agenda item 
X.B.1. through X.D.3. Motion 
carried.   

 3. Acceptance of the Harris Health System Fourth Quarter Fiscal Year 2023 Pension Plan Report Motion No.  24.02-29 
Moved by Ms. Afsheen Davis, 
seconded by Dr. Cody Pyke, and 
unanimously passed that the 
Board approve agenda item 
X.B.1. through X.D.3. Motion 
carried.   

 4. Acceptance of the Harris Health System December 2023 Quarterly Financial Report Subject to 
Audit 

Motion No.  24.02-29 
Moved by Ms. Afsheen Davis, 
seconded by Dr. Cody Pyke, and 
unanimously passed that the 
Board approve agenda item 
X.B.1. through X.D.3. Motion 
carried.   

 5. Acceptance of the Harris County Hospital District Pension Plan Investment Practices and 
Performance Evaluation as of the Year Ended December 31, 2023 as Required by the Texas 
Pension Review Board 

Motion No.  24.02-29 
Moved by Ms. Afsheen Davis, 
seconded by Dr. Cody Pyke, and 
unanimously passed that the 
Board approve agenda item 
X.B.1. through X.D.3. Motion 
carried.   

12



Minutes of the Board of Trustees Board Meeting – February 29, 2024 
Page 9 of 12 
 

 6. Acceptance of the Harris Health System Independent Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements 
for the Year Ended September 30, 2023 

Motion No.  24.02-29 
Moved by Ms. Afsheen Davis, 
seconded by Dr. Cody Pyke, and 
unanimously passed that the 
Board approve agenda item 
X.B.1. through X.D.3. Motion 
carried.   

 7. Acceptance of the Harris Health System Single Audit Report of Federal and State Award Programs 
for the Year Ended September 30, 2023 

Motion No.  24.02-29 
Moved by Ms. Afsheen Davis, 
seconded by Dr. Cody Pyke, and 
unanimously passed that the 
Board approve agenda item 
X.B.1. through X.D.3. Motion 
carried.   

 C. Consent Grant Recommendations   

 1. Approval of Grant Recommendations (items C1-C6)  Motion No.  24.02-29 
Moved by Ms. Afsheen Davis, 
seconded by Dr. Cody Pyke, and 
unanimously passed that the 
Board approve agenda item 
X.B.1. through X.D.3. Motion 
carried.   

 D. New Consent Items for Board Approval   

 1. Approval of Agreement between Harris Health and Baylor College of Medicine at Houston for 
Parking at Harris Health Smith Clinic 

Motion No.  24.02-29 
Moved by Ms. Afsheen Davis, 
seconded by Dr. Cody Pyke, and 
unanimously passed that the 
Board approve agenda item 
X.B.1. through X.D.3. Motion 
carried.   

 2. Approval to Authorize the Senior Vice President, Facilities Construction & Systems Engineering, to 
Sign Permit, Easement and Construction-related Administrative Applications, Forms and Ancillary 
Documents, as Required by the Appropriate Authorities Having Jurisdiction  

Motion No.  24.02-29 
Moved by Ms. Afsheen Davis, 
seconded by Dr. Cody Pyke, and 
unanimously passed that the 
Board approve agenda item 
X.B.1. through X.D.3. Motion 
carried.   

13



Minutes of the Board of Trustees Board Meeting – February 29, 2024 
Page 10 of 12 
 

 3. Approval of an Interlocal Agreement Between the Harris County Hospital District d/b/a Harris 
Health System and Harris County Public Health Department for Delivery of Evidence-based 
Diabetes Prevention Program 

Motion No.  24.02-29 
Moved by Ms. Afsheen Davis, 
seconded by Dr. Cody Pyke, and 
unanimously passed that the 
Board approve agenda item 
X.B.1. through X.D.3. Motion 
carried.   

 E. Consent Reports and Updates to the Board  For Informational Purposes Only 

 1. Updates Regarding Pending State and Federal Legislative and Policy Issues Impacting Harris Health 
System 

 

 2. Harris Health System Council-At-Large January 8, 2024 Meeting Minutes  

{End of Consent Agenda} 

 

XI. Item(s) Related to 
the Health Care for 
the Homeless 
Program 

  

 A. Review and Acceptance of the Following Reports for the Health Care for the Homeless Program (HCHP) 
as Required by the United States Department of Health and Human Services, which Provides Funding 
to the Harris County Hospital District d/b/a/Harris Health System to Provide Health Services to Persons 
Experiencing Homelessness under Section 330(h) of the Public Health Service Act  
 
• HCHP February 2024 Operational Update 
 
Ms. Tracey Burdine, Director, Health Care for the Homeless Program, delivered a presentation 
regarding the Health Care for the Homeless Program February 2024 Operational Update including 
Patient Services, Change in Scope, 2024 Sliding Fee Scale, and Q4 Budget Summary Report.  Ms. Burdine 
reported that there were 392 new adult patients, eighteen (18) new pediatric patients, and twenty – one 
(21) returning telehealth patients associated with the Program.  She stated that for the month of 
January, HCHP served 1,271 unduplicated patients, of which 262 patients were seen for family practice 
services.  She also noted that there were 2,370 completed visits for the month of January.                      
Ms. Burdine deferred the presentation of the change in scope for the medical mobile unit until the HCHP 
has a confirmed date of construction at the Martin Luther King (MLK) Jr. Health Center.  She presented 
the 2024 HCHP Sliding Fee Scale, noting that the modifications were based upon the 2024 Federal 
Poverty Guidelines issued on January 17, 2024.  The modified sliding fee scale will be effective on March 
1, 2024.  This sliding fee scale only applies to patients of the Program.    
 
 

Motion No.  24.02-32 
Moved by Ms. Sima 
Ladjevardian, seconded by Ms. 
Afsheen Davis, and unanimously 
passed that the Board approve 
agenda item XI.A. Motion 
carried.   

14



Minutes of the Board of Trustees Board Meeting – February 29, 2024 
Page 11 of 12 
 

Ms. Burdine presented the HCHP Q4 Budget Summary Report.  She noted the budget encompasses a 
multiple award year budget based upon all federal and non-federal grant awards received by the 
homeless department.  The grant awards can range from an annual award to multiple years depending 
on the award. Ms. Burdine reported that 56.9% of total grant funding have been utilized, which can be 
attributed to various items such as personal/fringe, supplies, and contractual obligations.  She noted that 
although line items associated with travel, equipment and other categories fell below the 56.9% 
utilization rate, the Program anticipates an increase in funds utilized over the coming months in each of 
the respective areas.  She mentioned that any additional funds will be carried over to the next calendar 
year.  A copy of the operational update is available in the permanent record. 

 B. Approval of the HCHP Change in Scope PULLED  
 C. Approval of the HCHP 2024 Sliding Fee Scale Motion No.  24.02-30 

Moved by Ms. Sima 
Ladjevardian, seconded by Ms. 
Afsheen Davis, and unanimously 
passed that the Board approve 
agenda item XI.C. Motion 
carried.   

 D. Approval of the HCHP 4th Quarter Budget Summary Report Motion No.  24.02-31 
Moved by Ms. Sima 
Ladjevardian, seconded by Ms. 
Afsheen Davis, and unanimously 
passed that the Board approve 
agenda item XI.D. Motion 
carried.   

XII. Executive Session At 11:00 a.m., Dr. Andrea Caracostis stated that the Board would enter into Executive Session for items XII. 
“D and E” as permitted by law under Tex. Health & Safety Code Ann. §161.032 and Tex. Gov’t Code Ann. 
§551.085.” 

 

 D. Approval of the Community Health Choice Texas, Inc. and Community Health Choice, Inc. 2024 
Insurance Renewals, Pursuant to Tex. Gov’t Code Ann. §551.085, Including Possible Action Upon 
Return to Open Session 

Motion No.  24.02-33 
Moved by Ms. Afsheen Davis, 
seconded by Ms. Carol Paret, 
and unanimously passed that 
the Board approve agenda item 
XII.E. Motion carried.   

 E. Report by the Executive Vice President, Chief Compliance and Risk Officer, Regarding Compliance with 
Medicare, Medicaid, HIPAA and Other Federal and State Health Care Program Requirements, Including 
Status of Fraud and Abuse Investigations, Pursuant to Tex. Health & Safety Code Ann. §161.032. 
 

No Action Taken.   

15



Minutes of the Board of Trustees Board Meeting – February 29, 2024 
Page 12 of 12 
 

 
  I certify that the foregoing are the Minutes of the Harris Health System Board of Trustees Meeting held on February 29, 2024. 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 

  
   

Andrea Caracostis, MD, MPH, Chair 
 
 
 

 

Carol Paret, BS, Secretary 
 

 

   
    Minutes transcribed by Cherry A. Pierson, MBA 

 

XIII. Reconvene At 11:29 a.m., Dr. Andrea Caracostis reconvened the meeting in open session; she noted that a quorum 
was present.  The Board took action on item “D” of the Executive Session Agenda.  

 

XIV. Adjournment  There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting adjourned at 11:30 a.m. Moved by Ms. Sima 
Ladjevardian, seconded by Dr. 
Cody Pyke, and unanimously 
approved to adjourn the 
meeting.   

16



Thursday, February 29, 2024 
Harris Health System Board of Trustees Board Meeting – Attendance 

Note: For Zoom meeting attendance, if you joined as a group and would like to be counted as present, please submit an email to: 
BoardofTrustees@harrishealth.org before close of business the day of the meeting. 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT 
Afsheen Davis Marcia Johnson 
Dr. Andrea Caracostis (Chair)  
Carol Paret (Secretary)  
Dr. Cody M. Pyke (Vice Chair)  
Ingrid Robinson  
Jennifer Tijerina  
Jim Robinson  
Sima Ladjevardian  
 

EXECUTIVE LEADERSHIP/STAFF/ SPECIAL INVITED GUESTS 
Amy Smith Jessey Thomas 
Anna Mateja (Community Health Choice, CFO) John Matcek 
Anthony Williams Jose Gonzalez (International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers) 
Antoinette “Toni” Cotton Dr. Joseph Kunisch 
Carolynn Jones Kari McMichael 
Cherry Pierson Dr. Kunal Sharma 
Christopher Okezie Lisa Wright (Community Health Choice, President & CEO) 
Cynthia Cole (AFSCME: Public Comment Speaker) Louis Smith 
Daniel Smith Maria Cowles  
DeWight Dopslauf (Harris County Purchasing Office) Dr. Martha Mims  
Ebon Swofford (Harris County Attorney’s Office) Dr. Marylou Buyse (Community Health Choice, CMO) 
Elizabeth Hanshaw Winn (Harris County Attorney’s Office) Dr. Matasha Russell 
Dr. Esmaeil Porsa (Harris Health System President & CEO) Maureen Padilla 
Dr. Esperanza “Hope” Galvan Michael Hill 
Dr. Glorimar Medina Dr. Michael Nnadi 
Holly Gummert (Harris County Attorney’s Office) Nicholas J. Bell 
Jack Adger (Harris County Purchasing Office) Olga Rodriguez 
Jeffrey Baker Omar Reid 
Jennifer Small Dr. Otis R. Egins 
Jennifer Zarate  Paige Abernathy (Harris County Attorney’s Office) 
Jerry Summers  Patricia Darnauer 

17

mailto:BoardofTrustees@harrishealth.org?subject=Board/Committee%20Meeting%20Attendance


Attendance List I Board of Trustees Board Meeting 
 January 25, 2024 

Page 2 

EXECUTIVE LEADERSHIP/STAFF/ SPECIAL INVITED GUESTS 
Patrick Casey Shawn DeCosta 
R. King Hillier Dr. Steven Brass 
Randy Manarang Dr. Tien Ko 
Ray Gutierrez (Houston Construction Services) Tracey Burdine 
Sam Karim Victoria Nikitin 
Dr. Sandeep Markan   Vivian Ho-Nguyen 
Sara Thomas (Harris County’s Attorney’s Office)  

 

 

18



 
 

 
     harrishealth.org 
 
 

 
Public Comment Request and Registration Process 

 
Pursuant to Texas Government Code §551.007, members of the public are invited to attend the regular 
meetings of the Harris Health System Board of Trustees and may address the Board during the Public 
Comment segment regarding an official agenda item that the Board will discuss, review, or take action 
upon, or regarding a subject related to healthcare or patient care rendered at Harris Health System. 
Public Comment will occur prior to the consideration of all agenda items. If you have signed up to 
attend as a Public Speaker virtually, a meeting link will be provided. Note: Public Speakers will be 
removed from the meeting after speaking and have the option to join the meeting live via 
http://harrishealthtx.swagit.com/live. 

How to Request to Address the Board of Trustees 
Members of the public must register in advance to speak at the Harris Health System Board of Trustees 
meetings.  To register, members of the public must contact the Board of Trustees Office during core 
business hours, Monday through Friday between 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Members of the public must 
submit the registration no later than 4:00 p.m. on the day before the scheduled meeting and may only 
register in one of the following manners: 

1. Providing the requested information located in the “Speak to the Board” tile found at: 
https://www.harrishealth.org/about-us-hh/board/Pages/public-comment-request-and-
registration-process.aspx.   

2. Printing and completing the downloadable registration form found at: 
https://www.harrishealth.org/about-us-hh/board/Pages/public-comment-request-and-
registration-process.aspx. 
2a. A hard-copy may be scanned and emailed to BoardofTrustees@harrishealth.org. 
2b. Mailing the completed registration form to 4800 Fournace Pl., Ste. E618, Bellaire, TX 

77401. 
3. Contacting staff at (346) 426-1524. 

Prior to submitting a request to address the Harris Health System Board of Trustees, please take a 
moment to review the rules to be observed during the Public Comment Period. 

Rules During Public Comment Period 
The presiding officer of the Board of Trustees or the Board Secretary shall keep the time for speakers.   

Three Minutes 
A speaker, whose subject matter, as submitted, relates to an identifiable item of business on the agenda, 
will be requested by the presiding officer to come to the podium where they will be provided three (3) 
minutes to speak.  A speaker, whose subject matter, as submitted, does not relate to an identifiable item 
of business on the agenda, will also be provided three (3) minutes to speak. A member of the public who 
addresses the body through a translator will be given at least twice the amount of time as a member of 
the public who does not require the assistance of a translator. 
 

19

https://www.harrishealth.org/about-us-hh/board/Pages/public-comment-request-and-registration-process.aspx
https://www.harrishealth.org/about-us-hh/board/Pages/public-comment-request-and-registration-process.aspx
http://harrishealthtx.swagit.com/live
https://www.harrishealth.org/about-us-hh/board/Pages/public-comment-request-and-registration-process.aspx
https://www.harrishealth.org/about-us-hh/board/Pages/public-comment-request-and-registration-process.aspx
https://www.harrishealth.org/about-us-hh/board/Pages/public-comment-request-and-registration-process.aspx
https://www.harrishealth.org/about-us-hh/board/Pages/public-comment-request-and-registration-process.aspx
mailto:BoardofTrustees@harrishealth.org
https://www.harrishealth.org/about-us-hh/board/Pages/public-comment-request-and-registration-process.aspx
https://www.harrishealth.org/about-us-hh/board/Pages/public-comment-request-and-registration-process.aspx
http://harrishealthtx.swagit.com/live
https://www.harrishealth.org/about-us-hh/board/Pages/public-comment-request-and-registration-process.aspx
https://www.harrishealth.org/about-us-hh/board/Pages/public-comment-request-and-registration-process.aspx


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- Page 20 Was Intentionally Left Blank - 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 



Thursday, March 28, 2024

Executive Session

Report Regarding Quality of Medical and Healthcare, Pursuant to Tex. Health & Safety Code Ann. 
§161.032, Tex. Occ. Code Ann. §160.007, and Tex. Occ. Code Ann. §151.002 to Receive Peer Review 
and/or Medical Committee Report, Including Report of the Medical Executive Board in Connection with 
the Evaluation of the Quality of Medical and Healthcare Services, Including the Harris Health System
Quality, Safety Performance Measures, and Possible Action Regarding this Matter Upon Return to Open 
Session.

Dr. Yashwant Chathampally
Associate Chief Medical Officer, Senior Vice President – Quality & Patient Safety

21



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- Page 22 Was Intentionally Left Blank - 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 



Thursday, March 28, 2024

Executive Session

Medical Executive Board Report and Credentialing Discussion, Pursuant to Tex. Health & Safety Code 
Ann. §161.032, Tex. Occ. Code Ann. §160.007, and Tex. Occ. Code Ann. §151.002 to Receive Peer Review 
and/or Medical Committee Report, Including Consideration of Approval of Credentialing Changes for 
Members of the Harris Health System Medical Staff.

Dr. Yashwant Chathampally
Associate Chief Medical Officer, Senior Vice President – Quality & Patient Safety

23



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- Pages 24-43 Were Intentionally Left Blank - 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 



Thursday, March 28, 2024

Executive Session

Report Regarding Harris Health System Correctional Health Quality of Medical and Healthcare, 
Including Credentialing Discussion and Operational Updates, Pursuant to Tex. Health & Safety Code 
Ann. §161.032, Tex. Occ. Code Ann. §160.007, Tex. Occ. Code Ann. §151.002 and Tex. Gov’t Code Ann. 
§551.071 to Receive Peer Review and/or Medical Committee Report with Possible Action Upon Return 
to Open Session.

Dr. Yashwant Chathampally
Associate Chief Medical Officer, Senior Vice President – Quality & Patient Safety

44



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- Pages 45-49 Were Intentionally Left Blank - 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 



 
 

Thursday, March 28, 2024 
 

Consideration of Approval Regarding Credentialing Changes for 
Members of the Harris Health System Medical Staff 

 
 

 
 

The Harris Health System Medical Executive Board approved the attached credentialing 
changes for the members of the Harris Health System Medical Staff for March 2024. 
 
The Harris Health System Medical Executive Board requests the approval of the Board of 
Trustees. 
 
 
 
 
Thank you. 

 
    

 
  

 

50



For Information

BCM/UT/Harris County Hospital District (Harris Health) Medical Staff Files for Discussion: 1

Temporary Privileges Awaiting Board Approval - 12
Urgent Patient Care Need Privileges Awaiting Board Approval - 3

Medical Staff Reappointment File for Discussion - 1

Medical Staff Reappointments: 40
BCM Medical Staff Reappointments - 16
UT Medical Staff Reappointments - 24
HCHD Medical Staff Reappointments - 0

BCM/UT/Harris County Hospital District (Harris Health) Medical Staff Changes in Clinical Privileges: 8

BCM/UT/HCHD Medical Staff Resignations: 71

BCM Medical Staff Initial Appointments - 6 
UT Medical Staff Initial Appointments - 6 
HCHD Medical Staff Initial Appointments - 0

Board of Trustees
March 2024 Medical Staff Credentials Report

Medical Staff Initial Appointments: 12

51



Thursday, March 28, 2024

Consideration of Approval of Changes to the Nephrology Clinical Privileges

A request was made to add Plasmapheresis/Therapeutic Plasma Exchange (TPE) as a non-core privilege 
to the Nephrology Clinical Privileges form. This will allow the nephrologists who meet the appropriate 
criteria and selected the non-core privilege to perform plasmapheresis or therapeutic plasma exchange 
(TPE). The appropriate stakeholders at both BT and LBJ have reviewed and are in agreement with the 
changes being presented.

The Harris Health System Medical Executive Board has approved the revisions to the Nephrology 
Clinical Privileges and requests the approval of the Board of Trustees.

Dr. Yashwant Chathampally
Associate Chief Medical Officer, Senior Vice President – Quality & Patient Safety

52



53



Thursday, March 28, 2024

Consideration of Approval of Credentialing Changes for Members of the Harris Health 
System Correctional Health Medical Staff

Otis R. Egins
Otis R. Egins, MD, CCHP-P
Chief Medical Officer of Correctional Health

54



Medical Staff Resignations: 1

Medical Staff Files for Discussion: 1

Medical Staff Reappointments: 4

Board of Trustees

March 2024 Correctional Health Credentials Report

Medical Staff Initial Appointments: 8

55



Thursday, March 28, 2024

Presentation Regarding Innovative Partnership to Build Structures and Processes that 
Facilitate Timely Enrollment and Access to Care in the Harris Health System for 

Under-insured Adolescents and Young Adults with Chronic Illness

56



Pediatrics

An Innovative Partnership to Build 
Structures and Processes that Facilitate 
Timely Enrollment and Access to Care in 

the Harris Health System for Under-
insured Adolescents and Young Adults 

with Chronic Illness

Presentation to the Harris Health
Board of Trustees

3/28/2024

57



Page  1

xxx00.#####.ppt  3/20/2024 3:48:01 PM
Pediatrics Pediatrics 

• The structure, processes, and results of the project

• Proposed steps to expand the project and achieve 
sustainability

Objectives:  The Ambulatory Care Services 
Medical Executive Committee will be able to 
discuss

58



Page  2

xxx00.#####.ppt  3/20/2024 3:48:01 PM
Pediatrics Pediatrics 

Partnerships

59



Page  3

xxx00.#####.ppt  3/20/2024 3:48:01 PM
Pediatrics Pediatrics 

2022 Renal Patient Flowchart from TCH to HHS

60



Page  4

xxx00.#####.ppt  3/20/2024 3:48:01 PM
Pediatrics Pediatrics 

2023 Renal Patient Flowchart from TCH to HHS

61



Page  5

xxx00.#####.ppt  3/20/2024 3:48:01 PM
Pediatrics Pediatrics 

1. Established and electronic referral system for the first time

a. TCH to HHS referral process via Epic Care Everywhere 
Referral Management (CERM) 

2. HHS patient navigator role

3. TCH patient navigator role

4. Continued regular meetings 

5. Continued data collection 

Next steps toward sustainability

62



Page  6

xxx00.#####.ppt  3/20/2024 3:48:01 PM
Pediatrics Pediatrics 

1. Identification of referral criteria for an external specialist to internal 
specialist referral

2. Created a process to send referrals electronically instead of by fax 
(Care everywhere referral messaging) 

3. Hired a Harris Health patient navigator 

4. Started the process of getting patients approved for the FAP 
through personnel at the City of Houston

5. Educational handouts created for patients who are transferring out 
of TCH to Harris Health

6. FAP flowchart

7. Prior to this project, TCH and HHS were not talking to each other in 
a functional way 

8. Patient/caregiver and stakeholder satisfaction surveys

Accomplishments

63



Page  7

xxx00.#####.ppt  3/20/2024 3:48:02 PM
Pediatrics Pediatrics 

64



Page  8

xxx00.#####.ppt  3/20/2024 3:48:02 PM
Pediatrics Pediatrics 

Questions?

65



Thursday, March 28, 2024

March Board Committee Reports

March Board Committee Meetings:

∑ Governance Committee – March 19, 2024
o Making Motion (Quick Reference Guide attached for your review)

∑ Quality Committee – March 19, 2024 (Summary attached for your review)
o HRO Safety Message – Video: Human Factors - Approach to Patient Safety
o Harris Health’s Engagement Survey Updates: Employee Experience & Culture
o Harris Health’s 2024 Det Norske Veritas (DNV) Annual Hospital Survey

∑ Joint Conference Committee – March 21, 2024

66



Quick View For Making Motions
Action Model Language Tips & Comments
Make a Motion “I move that we all wear the same 

color clothing to our board 
meetings.”

ÿ Use Clear Language

Second the Motion Any option below works:

“Second!”

“I second the motion!” 

“I second the motion that we build 
a new hospital!”

ÿ If a motion does not receive a second, the 
motion fails, unless the motion 
recommendation comes from a committee.

ÿ It is acceptable for the Chair to ask for a second 
to the motion. 

ÿ Make sure you direct your communication to 
the Chair so that the Chair can hear AND
acknowledge you.

Place the motion 
on the floor.

“The motion has been moved by X 
and seconded by Y, is there any 
discussion?”

ÿ Once the motion is on the floor, it no longer 
belongs to the motion maker.

Discussion/Debate “Chair, I have a comment.”

“Chair, I would like to speak.”

ÿ Chair should always open the floor for 
debate/discussion.

ÿ Give all members an opportunity to speak.

ÿ The Motion maker has the right to speak first.

Vote “All those in favor, say aye”

“All opposed, say nay”

ÿ Give members time to respond to both 
questions.

ÿ After a robust debate or debate on a complex 
topic, Chair should repeat the motion before 
the vote is taken to limit any confusion on the 
subject of the vote.

ÿ Make sure members online are also given time 
to vote.

ÿ Majority vote required unless bylaws or 
statutes dictate otherwise.

Announce Results “motion passes/fails“  ÿ Always announce the results.

Amend a Motion “I move to amend the motion to 
add that we all wear the color blue 
to our board meetings.”

ÿ Must be seconded, open to debate, and 
requires a majority vote unless bylaws or 
statutes dictate otherwise.

67



Board of Trustees – Executive Summary
Patient Safety & Quality Programs – Open Session
March 28, 2024

Please refer to the reports presented at the Quality Committee Executive Session on March 19, 2024 for 
additional details.

HRO Safety Message – Video: Human Factors - Approach to Patient Safety

High-reliability Organizations (HROs) are those that successfully complete their missions despite massive 
complexity and high risk. Examples include the Federal Aviation Administration’s Air Traffic Control system, 
aircraft carriers, and nuclear power plants. In each case, even a minor error could have catastrophic consequences. 
Yet, adverse outcomes in these organizations are rare. Five principles of a High Reliability Organization (HRO) are: 
(1) Preoccupation with failure; (2) Reluctance to simplify interpretations; (3) Sensitivity to operations; (4) 
Commitment to resilience; and (5) Deference to expertise. 

Engagement Survey Update - Employee Experience & Culture

Nursing and Human Resources leadership reported the results of the most recent employee engagement survey. 
The results will showcase our continued commitment to creating a Just and Accountable Culture. 

2024 DNV Annual Hospital Survey Update

Harris Health System is in the window for the unannounced annual survey from DNV Health Care on or before 
June 2024. Planning for survey is an ongoing process that includes 3 phases: Pre-survey, During Survey, and Post 
Survey. Assigned work groups assess standards on a going basis and report their progress to the oversight 
committee, they participate in the survey activity and respond to survey findings if needed. Resources are 
available to support the organization to prepare for the survey.

68



DeWight Dopslauf, C.P.M., CPPO 
Harris County Purchasing Agent 

1111 Fannin, 12th Floor, Houston, TX 77002   Tel 713-274-4400  Fax 713-755-6695 

 March 05, 2024 

Board of Trustees Office  
Harris Health System 

RE:   Board of Trustees Meeting – March 28, 2024 
Budget and Finance Agenda Items 

The Office of the Harris County Purchasing Agent recommends approval of the attached 
procurement actions.  All recommendations are within the guidelines established by Harris County 
and Harris Health System.

 Sincerely, 

DeWight Dopslauf 
Purchasing Agent

JA/ea 
Attachments 

69



6,699,182 6,832,968

*

3,500,000 4,500,000

*

2,917,550

1,525,599

1,308,948

Budget and Finance Agenda Items for the Harris County Hospital District dba Harris Health System - Board of Trustees Report

Expenditure Summary: March 28, 2024 (Approvals)

No. Vendor
Description
Justification

Contract

Action
Basis of

Recommendation
Term

Project Owner
Previous
Amount

Current
Estimated

Cost

A1 Epic Systems
Corporation [GA-
04577]

MWBE Goal: Exempt
Sole Source

Annual Software Maintenance Renewal for
the Full Suite of Epic Products for Harris
Health System - To continue to provide
maintenance, including technical support and
software updates, for the full suite of Epic
products for Harris Health System.

Sole Source Exemption, Board Motion
23.03-41

Renewal
Sole Source
Exemption

April 01, 2024
through

March 31, 2025

Antony Kilty   $  $ 

A2 Murray Goldfarb &
Co., LLC dba Davis
Cohen Art (HCHD-
1218)

MWBE Goal: 100% 

Art Consulting and Art Acquisition Services
for Harris Health System - To provide art
consulting and art acquisition services for
Harris Health System.

Job No. 230369

Award 
Best proposal

meeting requirements

Babak Zare 

A3 Jones Lange
LaSalle American,
Inc. (HCHD-436)

MWBE Goal: 11%

Construction Manager-Agent for Harris
Health System - To provide construction
manager-agent services for Harris Health
System

Job No. 200322, Board Motion 23.05-73

Renewal

April 25, 2024
through

April 24, 2025

Patrick Casey  $  $ 

A4 Capsa Healthcare

MWBE Goal: 0%
Specialized,
Technical, or Unique
in Nature

Automated Prescription Processing System
for Harris Health System - To provide a
turnkey Integrated Automated Prescription
Processing System for Harris Health System
Pharmacy’s Department. This includes
assisting with the design of a pharmacy
centralized refill drug dispensing and
distribution system including but not limited to
inventory management, labeling, packaging
and shipping of prescriptions, installation,
training of staff, future growth and
maintenance.

Job No. 230077

Award 
Best proposal

meeting requirements

One-year initial term
with nine (9) one-year

renewal options

Michael Nnadi 

A5 General Datatech,
L.P. (DIR-TSO-4167)

MWBE Goal: 2%

Cisco Network Technology Purchase for
Harris Health System - The Cisco network
infrastructure hardware at Ben Taub Hospital is
seven years old, will soon reach its end of life
and needs to be replaced. A total of 98 Cisco
switches will be replaced.

State of Texas Department of Information
Resources (DIR) Cooperative Contract

Ratify
Purchase
Low quote

Antony Kilty   $ 

A6 The Trevino Group,
Inc.

MWBE Goal: 33%

Renovation and Buildout of the MLK Jr.
Health Center for Harris Health System - To
provide all labor, materials, equipment and
incidentals for the renovation and buildout of
the MLK Jr. Health Center. The owner
contingency provides for coverage on
unanticipated costs throughout the
construction project

Job No. 230511

Lowest priced 
proposal meeting
requirements

Babak Zare  $ 

A7 Philips Healthcare

MWBE Goal: Exempt
GPO

Cardiovascular Imaging - To replace one (1)
single-plane interventional imaging system that
is past its expected useful life with a new unit
for Harris Health System.

Premier Healthcare Alliance, L.P. Contract

Award 
Best Offer(s) Meeting

Requirements

Patrick Casey  $ 

Page 1 of 12

70



695,618 1,200,000

400,000 1,000,000

1,500,000 1,000,000

976,759

900,456

831,615 831,615

2,700,000 750,000

930,114 742,797

No. Vendor
Description
Justification

Contract

Action
Basis of

Recommendation
Term

Project Owner
Previous
Amount

Current
Estimated

Cost

A8 Sysco Foods
(Sourcewell
#040522-SYC)

MWBE Goal: 0%
Drop Shipped

Purchase Food and Nutrition Edible and
Non-edible Products for Harris Health
System - To purchase food and nutritional
edible and non-edible products for various
Harris Health locations. Vendor will be utilized
as a secondary supplier.

Sourcewell Cooperative Purchasing
Program, Board Motion 23.03-41

Renewal

April 01, 2024
through

March 31, 2025

Shweta Misra  $  $ 

A9 Jackson Walker,
L.L.P. (HCHD-1050)

MWBE Goal: 0%
Specialized,
Technical, or Unique
in Nature

Legal Services for Harris Health
System - Additional funds are needed due to
anticipated increase in service.

Professional Services Exemption, Board
Motion 23.07-113

Ratify  
Additional Funds

Professional Services
Exemption

August 19, 2023
through

August 18, 2024

L.Sara Thomas  $  $ 

A10 Faithful + Gould,
Inc.

MWBE Goal: 11%

Construction Manager-Agent for Harris
Health System - To provide construction
manager-agent services for Harris Health
System.

Job No. 200322, Board Motion 23.05-73

Renewal 

May 04, 2024
through

May 03, 2025

Patrick Casey  $  $ 

A11 IdentiSys Inc.

MWBE Goal: 0%
Non-Divisible

Weapons Detection System for Harris
Health System - To provide a weapons
detections system to enhance the safety of the
patients and public at Harris Health facilities.

Public Health or Safety Exemption

Award 
Public Health or
Safety Exemption

Four-year initial term

Jon Hallaway  $ 

A12 Cepheid

MWBE Goal: Exempt
Sole Source

Sales Agreement - To provide reagents, test
cartridges and consumables for GeneXpert
equipment.

Sole Source Exemption

Purchase 
Sole Source
Exemption

One (1) year initial
term with five (5) one-
year renewal options

Michael Nnadi  $ 

A13 Set Solutions, Inc.
[DIR-TSO-4361]

MWBE Goal: 0%
Specialized,
Technical, or Unique
in Nature

Netskope - Cloud Access Security Broker
[CASB] Solution for Harris Health
System - To continue protecting the
organization's cloud initiatives and assist
information security's business goals for
alignment with Pillar 5: Infrastructure
Organization of Harris Health's Strategic Plan
for 2021-20215.

State of Texas Department of Information
Resources (DIR) Cooperative Contract,
Board Motion 23.04-58

Renewal 

April 14, 2024
through

April 13, 2025

Tom Oduor  $  $ 

A14 Elite Computer
Consultants (GA-
07563)

MWBE Goal: N/A
Contract was
procured prior to
MWBE program

Information Technology Consulting,
Implementation and Staffing Augmentation
Services for Harris Health System - To
continue providing staffing augmentation
support of Information Technology (IT)
operations and various projects such as the
implementation of EPIC for the Harris Center
and Correctional Health, telemedicine, and
DSRIP.

Job No. 180274, Board Motion 23.04-58

Additional Funds 

May 21, 2023
through

May 20, 2024

Ronald Fuschillo  $  $ 

A15 Abbott Laboratories 
Inc. (HCHD-424) 

MWBE Goal: Exempt 
Sole Source 

iStat Point of Care Products for Harris
Health System - Additional funds are needed
to replace iSTAT point of care analyzers that
have reached their useful life expectancy. The
term is being extended to align with revisions
made in the Amendment.

Sole Source Exemption, Board Motion
24.01-10

Additional Funds 
Extension
Sole Source
Exemption

November 23, 2024
through

November 30, 2024

Michael Nnadi  $  $ 

Page 2 of 12

71



1,950,000 740,836

679,870 679,870

652,867

307,378 650,000

625,000

467,797 600,000

537,489 591,238

No. Vendor
Description
Justification

Contract

Action
Basis of

Recommendation
Term

Project Owner
Previous
Amount

Current
Estimated

Cost

A16 Pivot Point
Consulting (GA-
07577)

MWBE Goal: N/A
Contract was
procured prior to
MWBE program

Information Technology Consulting,
Implementation and Staffing Augmentation
Services for Harris Health System - To
continue providing staffing augmentation
support of Information Technology (IT)
operations and various projects such as the
implementation of EPIC for the Harris Center
and Correctional Health, telemedicine, and
DSRIP.

Job No. 180274, Board Motion 23.09-146

Additional Funds

May 21, 2023
through

May 20, 2024

Ronald Fuschillo  $  $ 

A17 Medtronic, Inc. (PP-
CA-613)

MWBE Goal: Exempt
GPO

Boston Scientific
Corporation (PP- 
CA-612)

MWBE Goal: Exempt
GPO

Drug Eluting Coronary Stents - To provide
Harris Health System with tubular metallic
scaffolds coated with antiproliferative drugs
placed during a percutaneous coronary
intervention to open a narrowed artery and
prevent vessel restenosis.

Premier Healthcare Alliance, L.P. Contract

Funding Yr. 1 

July 01, 2023
through

June 30, 2024

Charles Motley  $  $ 

A18 O'Donnell/Snider
Construction

MWBE Goal: 33%

Construction of an Administration Suite at
Lyndon B. Johnson Hospital for Harris
Health System - To provide all labor,
materials, equipment and incidentals for the
construction of an administration suite at
Lyndon B Johnson Hospital. The owner
contingency provides for coverage on
unanticipated costs throughout the
construction project.

Job No. 230502

Lowest priced 
proposal meeting
requirements

Babak Zare  $ 

A19 Advanced Health  
Education Center 
dba Medrelief 
Staffing (HCHD-580) 

MWBE Goal: 100% 

Temporary Pharmacists and Pharmacy
Technicians for Harris Health System  - To
provide pharmaceutical support to the Harris
County Sheriff's Office Correctional Facilities.

Public Health or Safety Exemption, Board
Motion 23.04-57

Ratify  
Renewal

Public Health or
Safety Exemption

March 01, 2024
through

February 28, 2025

Kiki Teal  $  $ 

A20 MLN Fire Protection  
Company  

MWBE Goal: 5% 

Inspection, Testing, and Maintenance of the
Fire and Life Safety Systems Equipment
and Related Items for Harris Health - To
provide inspection, testing, and maintenance
of the fire and life safety systems equipment
and related items for various Harris Health
locations.

Job No. 190239

Purchase 
Lowest priced

proposal meeting
requirements

One (1) year initial
term with one (1) one-
year renewal options

Terry Elliott  $ 

A21 Vista Staffing
Solutions, Inc. dba
Whitaker Medical,
LLC (HCHD-653)

MWBE Goal: Exempt
Public Health or
Safety

Temporary Healthcare Personnel for Harris
Health System  - To continue providing
healthcare personnel to support critical
healthcare services for detainees at the Harris
County Correctional Facilities.

Public Health or Safety Exemption, Board
Motion 23.03-41

Ratify  
Renewal

Public Health or
Safety Exemption

March 01, 2024
through

February 28, 2025

Kiki Teal  $  $ 

A22 Roche Diagnostics
Corporation (GA-
07432)

MWBE Goal: 0%
Specialized,
Technical, or Unique
in Nature

Immunohistochemistry Staining and
Special Staining Systems including
Analyzers, Reagents, Consumables and
Service for Harris Health System - To
provide for continued immunohistochemistry
staining and special staining testing of Harris
Health patients.

Job No. 150220, Board Motion 22.10-141

Ratify
Renewal

December 13, 2023
through

December 12, 2024

Michael Nnadi  $  $ 

Page 3 of 12

72



568,650 585,710

120,000 575,618

500,000

617,210 500,000

472,000 472,000

456,032 456,032

450,000 450,000

No. Vendor
Description
Justification

Contract

Action
Basis of

Recommendation
Term

Project Owner
Previous
Amount

Current
Estimated

Cost

A23 Vizient Data
Services, LLC (GA-
07108)

MWBE Goal: Exempt
Public Health or
Safety

Benchmarking Program Services for Harris
Health System - To continue to provide
Vizient's benchmarking program which
includes data analytics, advisory services, and
learning improvement collaboratives for Harris
Health System to become more clinically and
operationally effective to achieve its patient
care objectives.

Public Health or Safety Exemption, Board
Motion 22.12-166

Ratify
Renewal

Public Health or
Safety Exemption

January 01, 2024
through

December 31, 2024

Victoria Nikitin   $  $ 

A24 Sysco Foods
(Sourcewell
#040522-SYC)

MWBE Goal: 0%
Drop Shipped

Purchase Food and Nutrition Edible and
Non-edible Products for Harris Health
System - To purchase food and nutritional
edible and non-edible products for various
Harris Health locations. Vendor will be utilized
as a secondary supplier.

Sourcewell Cooperative Purchasing
Program, Board Motion 23.03-41

Ratify  
Additional Funds

April 01, 2023
through

March 31, 2024

Shweta Misra  $  $ 

A25 Holland & Knight,
LLP (HCHD-1221)

MWBE Goal: 0%
Specialized,
Technical, or Unique
in Nature

Special Counsel Services for Harris Health  
System - To provide Harris Health with special 
counsel on clinical research program and other 
healthcare law matters. 

Professional Services Exemption

Ratify  
Award

Professional Services
Exemption

One (1) year initial
term with one (1) one-
year renewal options

L. Sara Thomas  $ 

A26 Pro-Touch Nurses,
Inc. dba Protouch
Staffing

MWBE Goal: Exempt
Public Health or
Safety

Temporary Nursing Personnel provided to
the Harris County Sheriff's Office by Harris
Health System - To provide temporary
healthcare staffing for nursing personnel to
patients of the Harris County Sheriff's Office
Detention Facilities.

Public Health or Safety Exemption, Board
Motion 23.01-08

Ratify  
Renewal

Public Health or
Safety Exemption

March 01, 2024
through

February 28, 2025

Kiki Teal  $  $ 

A27 Forvis, LLP (HCHD-
971)

MWBE Goal: 7%

External Audit Services for Harris Health
System - To complete external audits services
on financial statements, report on Federal and
State Awards, and Harris Health Pension and
401(k) Plans

Job No. 220397, Board Motion 23.03-41

Renewal

May 07, 2024
through

May 06, 2025

Kari McMichael  $  $ 

A28 Arthrex, Inc. (HCHD-
0718) 

MWBE Goal: Exempt 
Public Health or 
Safety

Arthroscopic Implants - To continue
providing Harris Health System with clinically
preferred arthroscopic implants for minimally
invasive surgical procedures at Ben Taub and
Lyndon B. Johnson Hospitals.

Public Health or Safety Exemption, Board
Motion 22.05- 67

Ratify  
Renewal

Public Health or
Safety Exemption

February 01, 2024
through

January 31, 2025

Charles Motley  $  $ 

A29 Community Health
Choice, Inc. (GA-
05831)

MWBE Goal: Exempt
Government Entity

Third Party Administration of Healthcare
Claims from Non-Affiliated Providers for
Harris Health System - Community Health
Choice, Inc. (Community) will continue to
provide Harris Health System access to its
network of healthcare providers. Harris Health
System will pay Community an administrative
fee for providing access and will utilize the
network to refer patients and thereby increase
patience access to providers.

Interlocal Agreement, Board Motion 23.01-
08

Ratify
Renewal

March 01, 2024
through

February 28, 2025

Ruth Russell  $  $ 

Page 4 of 12

73



440,000

220,000 440,000

369,839

118,138 350,000

350,000 350,000

350,000 350,000

278,666 335,534

No. Vendor
Description
Justification

Contract

Action
Basis of

Recommendation
Term

Project Owner
Previous
Amount

Current
Estimated

Cost

A30 Seril Inc, dba
Houston Grotech

MWBE Goal: 11%

Lawn Care and Landscape Maintenance
Services for Harris Health System - To
provide lawn care and landscape maintenance
services to various Harris Health Facilities.

Job No. 210270

Purchase
Lowest priced

proposal meeting
requirements

One (1) year initial
term with three (3)
one-year renewal

options

Terry Elliott  $ 

A31 Charles Roger
Coward (HCHD-
1142)

MWBE Goal: Exempt
Public Health or
Safety

Interim Leader Services for Harris Health
System - To continue Interim Leadership
services until Harris Health System finds
permanent placement. Additional funds are
required for the extended term.

Professional Services Exemption, Board
Motion 23.12-177

Additional Funds 
Extension

Professional Services
Exemption

April 14, 2024
through

April 30, 2025

Ruth Russell  $  $ 

A32 Connection [PP-IT-
238]

MWBE Goal: Exempt
GPO

IT Equipment Stock for All Harris Health
System Facilities - This purchase is
necessary to maintain adequate IT equipment,
such as printers and scanners, in stock for the
facilities. This equipment will be deployed and
delivered upon request to Ben Taub Hospital,
Lyndon B. Johnson (LBJ) Hospital, and
Fournace Place for break/fix and is an
essential part of the Field Services team
emergency response.

Premier Healthcare Alliance, L.P. Contract

Ratify  
Award

Best Offer(s) Meeting
Requirements

A. Kilty  $ 

A33 Smith & Dean, Inc.
dba Dean's
Professional
Services (HCHD-
641)

MWBE Goal: 100% 

Temporary Healthcare Personnel for Harris
Health System  - To continue providing
healthcare personnel to provide critical
healthcare services to detainees at the Harris
County Detention Facilities.

Public Health or Safety Exemption, Board
Motion 23.03-41

Ratify  
Renewal

Public Health or
Safety Exemption

March 01, 2024
through

February 28, 2025

Kiki Teal  $  $ 

A34 JWS Health
Consultants, Inc.
dba UltraStaff
(HCHD-231)

MWBE Goal: 100%

Temporary Nursing and Allied Health
Services for Harris Health
System - Extension is required for continued
services until a formal solicitation is completed
and new contract executed. The additional
funds are required for the extension.

Public Health or Safety Exemption, Board
Motion 23.04-58

Ratify  
Additional Funds

Extension
Public Health or
Safety Exemption

March 21, 2024
through

September 20, 2024

Pamela Russell  $  $ 

A35 Incredible Health,
Inc. (HCHD-402)

MWBE Goal: Exempt
Public Health or
Safety

Nursing Recruiting Services for Harris
Health System - To utilize the Incredible
Health platform and services to recruit and hire
permanent registered nurses and nurse
practitioners to provide patient care to Harris
Health System's patient population.

Public Health or Safety Exemption, Board
Motion 23.01-08

Ratify  
Renewal

Public Health or
Safety Exemption

March 04, 2024
through

March 03, 2025

Keith Manis  $  $ 

A36 Set Solutions, Inc. 
[HCHD-193] [Choice  
Partners 
#21/031KN-55] 

MWBE Goal: 0% 
Specialized, 
Technical, or Unique 
in Nature 

Renewal for CrowdStrike-Advanced
Malware Threat Intelligence Platform for
Harris Health System - This renewal will
provide for CrowdStrike advanced malware
threat intelligence platform that protects the
organization from phishing attacks and
ransomware with fewer network resources.
This provides advanced protection and
awareness of our endpoints.

Choice Partners, a division of Harris
County Department of Education
Cooperative Program, Board Motion B.O.T.
23.01-08

Ratify
Renewal

March 27, 2024
through

March 26, 2025

Tom Oduor  $  $ 

Page 5 of 12

74



321,130

625,000 300,000

295,000 300,000

271,010 271,010

258,122

254,991 254,991

145,000 250,000

No. Vendor
Description
Justification

Contract

Action
Basis of

Recommendation
Term

Project Owner
Previous
Amount

Current
Estimated

Cost

A37 Dunhill
Development &
Construction LLC

MWBE Goal: 32%

Construction and Buildout of Northwest
Clinic HIM Space for Harris Health
System - To convert the existing NW Clinic
HIM space into a smaller HIM office, therapist
office, indirect care area, small conference
room, supply room and touch down
workstations for telecommuting staff. The
owner contingency provides for coverages on
unanticipated costs throughout the
construction project.

Job No. 230399

Lowest priced
proposal meeting
requirements

Babak Zare  $ 

A38 Highlights Electrical 

MWBE Goal: N/A  
Contract was 
procured prior to 
MWBE program

Job Order Contracting for Electrical and/or
Electrical Related Projects for Harris Health
System - To provide electrical repair,
renovation or alteration to various hospitals
and clinics for Harris Health System.

Job No. 180070, Board Motion 23.10-158

Additional Funds 
Extension

March 13, 2024
through

September 11, 2024

Kia Scales  $  $ 

A39 Baker & Hostetler
LLP (HCHD-913)

MWBE Goal: 0%
Specialized,
Technical, or Unique
in Nature

Legal Services for Harris Health
System - Additional funds are required to
cover additional services related to HIPAA
privacy and security incidents.

Professional Services Exemption, Board
Motion 23.08-130

Additional Funds 
Professional Services

Exemption

October 01, 2023
through

September 30, 2024

L. Sara Thomas  $  $ 

A40 NTT America
Solutions, Inc. (CID
GA-07271)

MWBE Goal: Exempt
Sole Source

Software Maintenance Renewal for the
Virtual patient observation (VPO) System
for Harris Health - To continue to provide a
patient monitoring system that allows clinicians
to remotely monitor patients who are at risk.
This reduces the need for bedside sitters,
enhances patient safety and increased
clinician efficiency.

Sole Source Exemption, Board Motion
23.06-95

Renewal 
Sole Source
Exemption

April 01, 2024
through

March 31, 2025

Ronald Fuschillo  $  $ 

A41 Stryker Instruments
(HCHD-1139)

MWBE Goal: Exempt
Public Health or
Safety

Preventative Maintenance and Repair
Services for Harris Health System - In
January 2024, the Board of Trustees approved
an agreement with Stryker Instruments for two
years. The term, along with the respective
amount, is being corrected to one year with
one renewal option, in the best interest of
Harris Health System

HCHD-1139

Ratification/Correction 
Correction

James Young  $ 

A42 Coloplast Corp (PP-
NS-1715)

MWBE Goal: Exempt
GPO

Medline Industries,
LP (PP-NS-1717)

MWBE Goal: Exempt
GPO

Skin Integrity: Skin Cleanser, Barrier and
Lotion Products - To continue to provide
Harris Health System with products used to
improve, maintain, protect and promote
healing of the patient’s dermal and epidermal
skin. Products include skin cleansers,
moisturizers, lotions, sprays, body washes and
barrier wipes.

Premier Healthcare Alliance, L.P. Contract,
Board Motion 23.09-146

Funding Yr. 2 

April 01, 2024
through

March 31, 2025

Charles Motley  $  $ 

A43 Jackson Walker,
L.L.P. (HCHD-978)

MWBE Goal: 0%
Specialized,
Technical, or Unique
in Nature

Legal Services for Harris Health
System - Additional funds are needed due to
anticipated increase in service.

Professional Services Exemption, Board
Motion 23.07-113

Ratify  
Additional Funds

Professional Services
Exemption

July 01, 2023
through

June 30, 2024

L.Sara Thomas  $  $ 

Page 6 of 12

75



244,336 244,336

235,000 235,000

222,887

220,000 220,000

215,531

200,000

137,200 192,140

No. Vendor
Description
Justification

Contract

Action
Basis of

Recommendation
Term

Project Owner
Previous
Amount

Current
Estimated

Cost

A44 Stryker Corporation  
(PP-OR-1764) 

MWBE Goal: Exempt 
GPO  

Aesculap, Inc. (PP-
OR-1765)

MWBE Goal: Exempt
GPO

Neurosurgical Products - To continue
providing Harris Health System with
neurosurgical products that are utilized for
patients undergoing craniotomy and
neurosurgical procedures.

Premier Healthcare Alliance, L.P. Contract,
Board Motion 22.10-141

Ratify
Funding Yr. 4

December 01, 2023
through

November 30, 2024

Charles Motley  $  $ 

A45 Alliant Insurance
Services, Inc.
(HCHD-93)

MWBE Goal: 0%
Specialized,
Technical, or Unique
in Nature

Human Resources Consulting Services for
Harris Health System - To continue providing
comprehensive advisory services to assist
Human Resources in the areas of health and
welfare benefit plan strategy and management.

Job No. 190044, Board Motion 22.12-166

Ratify
Renewal

January 02, 2024
through

January 01, 2025

Amanda Jones- 
Duncan

 $  $ 

A46 Letourneau
Interests, Inc.

MWBE Goal: Exempt
GPO  

Furniture and Systems for Harris Health
System - To provide furniture for Casa de
Amigos Health Center.

Premier Healthcare Alliance, L.P. Contract

Award
Lowest Offer

Cindy Perez  $ 

A47 Deborah R. Mohr
dba Mohr Creative
(GA-07118)

MWBE Goal: 100%

Creative Services for Harris Health - To
provide Harris Health System with creative
design related services including project
management and proof-reading, to assist with
marketing, communication, and educational
materials.

Personal Services Exemption, Board
Motion 23.01-08

Ratify  
Renewal

Personal Services
Exemption

February 08, 2024
through

February 07, 2025

Olga Rodriguez  $  $ 

A48 Radiometer America
Inc. 

MWBE Goal: Exempt 
GPO  

Blood Gas Analyzers, Reagents,
Consumables and Service - To acquire new
blood gas analyzers, as well as reagents,
consumables and service at Ben Taub and
Lyndon B. Johnson Hospitals.

Premier Healthcare Alliance, L.P. Contract

Award 
Best Contract(s)

Michael Nnadi  $ 

A49 Kacal's Auto &
Truck Service

MWBE Goal: Exempt
- Harris County
Contract

General Vehicle Maintenance and Related
Items for Harris County - To allow Harris
Health to utilize the contract to provide repair
parts, labor, and related items for oversize
vehicles for Harris Health System.

Job No. 230216

Ratify

October 10, 2023
through

September 30, 2024

Peka Owens  $ 

A50 DNV Healthcare
USA Inc. dba DNV
Healthcare (HCHD-
582)

MWBE Goal: 0%
Minimal MWBE
Availability

Management System Certification /
Accreditation for Harris Health System - To
continue providing for National Integrated
Accreditation for Healthcare Organization
(NIAHO) Re-Accreditation and ISO 9001:2015
Certification survey and the Comprehensive
Stroke Center Certification (CSC) Survey for
Harris Health System.

Public Health or Safety Exemption, Board
Motion 23.04-57

Ratify
Renewal

Public Health or
Safety Exemption

March 08, 2024
through

March 07, 2025

Vivian Trang Ho- 
Nguyen

 $  $ 

Page 7 of 12

76



179,500

56,249 176,192

*

136,579 139,994

133,000 133,000

121,125

114,878 120,622

No. Vendor
Description
Justification

Contract

Action
Basis of

Recommendation
Term

Project Owner
Previous
Amount

Current
Estimated

Cost

A51 Epic Systems
Corporation [GA-
04577]

MWBE Goal: Exempt
Sole Source

Epic Unified Communications Software and
Services for Harris Health System - To
provide implementation support for Secure
Chat, On-Call Integration, Third Party Voice
Over IP Integration, and Alert Communicator,
which are all part of the Epic Unified
Communications platform. This platform allows
clinicians to receive immediate patient updates
via a mobile device, and this includes Rover
Inpatient for Nurses and Support Staff.

Sole Source Exemption, Board Motion
23.03-41

Purchase
Sole Source
Exemption

April 01, 2024
through

March 31, 2025

J. Mathew  $ 

A52 Masterword
Services, Inc.
(HCHD-1054)

MWBE Goal: 100%

Translation and Interpretation Services for
Harris County - To translate SIG (prescription
labels) written in English to Spanish or
Vietnamese for non-English speaking patients.

Job No. 210374

Renewal

April 05, 2024
through

April 04, 2025

Michael Nnadi  $  $ 

A53 CBIZ Benefits &
Insurance Services,
Inc. (HCHD-1233)

MWBE Goal: 0%
Specialized,
Technical, or Unique
in Nature

Compensation Consulting Services for
Harris Health System - To provide
compensation consulting services for Harris
Health System to ensure competitiveness in
the healthcare market through innovative ways
to support this goal and promote staff
retention.

Job No. 220173

Award 
Best proposal

meeting requirements

One (1) year initial
term with six (6) one-
year renewal options

Amy Salinas 

A54 Shipcom Wireless,
Inc. [HCHD-150]
[GS-35F-464DA]

MWBE Goal: 0%
Specialized,
Technical, or Unique
in Nature

Information Technology (IT) Professional
Services for Harris Health System - This
renewal is to provide temperature monitoring
and data analysis to track the temperature and
humidity of patient medical samples,
pharmaceuticals, and medical devices,
transported by HHS staff within HHS
refrigerated vehicles and insulated containers.
The solution analyzes the operational status of
the HVAC equipment and provides a wireless
connection that automates assigning coolers.

Government Services Administration (GSA)
Cooperative Purchasing Program, Board
Motion 23.01-08

Renewal

March 28, 2024
through

March 27, 2025

Wanda F Carter  $  $ 

A55 Epic Systems
Corporation [GA-
04577]

MWBE Goal: Exempt
Sole Source

Epic Software and Clinical Training for
Employees of Harris Health System - This
renewal is to provide training for Harris Health
employees, primarily IT personnel, on Epic
software applications in order for them to
perform their jobs.

Sole Source Exemption, Board Motion
23.03-41

Renewal
Sole Source
Exemption

April 01, 2024
through

March 31, 2025

Antony Kilty   $  $ 

A56 Getinge USA Sales,
LLC

MWBE Goal: Exempt
GPO

Intra-Aortic Balloon Pump - To add two (2)
new Intra-Aortic Balloon Pumps at Ben Taub
Hospital in order to meet the operational needs
of the expanded Cath Lab suite.

Premier Healthcare Alliance, L.P. Contract

Award 
Lowest Offer

Patrick Casey  $ 

A57 Cardinal Health 200, 
LLC (PP-DI-1964) 

MWBE Goal: Exempt 
GPO  

Feeding Pumps, Devices, Sets and
Tubes - To provide Harris Health System with
feeding pumps, tubes, and devices used for
delivery of hydration or nutrition through the
digestive tract.

Premier Healthcare Alliance, L.P. Contract,
Board Motion 23.01-08

Ratify  
Funding Yr. 3

March 01, 2024
through

February 28, 2025

Charles Motley  $  $ 

Page 8 of 12

77



100,000 120,575

1,016,119 119,234

6,054,403 103,512

49,065,250

(0)

No. Vendor
Description
Justification

Contract

Action
Basis of

Recommendation
Term

Project Owner
Previous
Amount

Current
Estimated

Cost

A58 Harris County (GA-
01416)

MWBE Goal: Exempt
Government Entity

Use of Public Safety Radio System for
Harris Health System - To provide access to
Harris County’s radio communications system.

Interlocal Agreement, Board Motion 22.09-
126

Ratify  
Renewal

November 05, 2023
through

November 04, 2024

Hallaway, Jon D   $  $ 

A59 RaySearch
Americas (HCHD
-703)

MWBE Goal: Exempt
Sole Source

Treatment Planning System (TPS) for the
Harris Health System - To provide
maintenance on the RaySearch RayStation
Treatment Planning System for the Oncology
Department

Sole Source Exemption, Board Motion
22.05-67

Ratify  
Renewal

Sole Source
Exemption

January 19, 2024
through

January 18, 2025

Ronald Fuschillo  $  $ 

A60 GE Precision
Healthcare LLC
(HCHD-330)

MWBE Goal: Exempt
GPO

Maintenance Services for Radiological
Imaging Equipment for Harris Health
System - Additional funds are needed as part
of the annual true-up for adding and removing
systems from the GE Master Service
Agreement. Two MRI machines at LBJ are
being moved from warranty to first look which
increased estimated funding needed for the
renewal term.

Premier Healthcare Alliance, L.P. Contract,
Board Motion 24.01-10

Additional Funds 

December 21, 2023
through

December 20, 2024

James Young  $  $ 

Total
Expenditures

 $ 

Total
Revenue

 $ 

Page 9 of 12

78



100,000

200,000 100,000

96,120 99,975

*

95,500 87,768

83,276

79,928

Budget and Finance Agenda Items for the Harris County Hospital District dba Harris Health System - Board of Trustees Report

Expenditure Summary: March 28, 2024 (Transmittals)

No. Vendor
Description
Justification

Contract

Action
Basis of

Recommendation
Term

Project Owner
Previous
Amount

Current
Estimated

Cost

B1 Stephens Reed &
Armstrong, PLLC
(HCHD-1210)

MWBE Goal: 100%

Special Counsel for Harris Health System - To
provide special counsel for the purpose of
reviewing construction agreement templates and
other services for Harris Health System.

Professional Services Exemption

Award
Professional
Services
Exemption

One (1) year initial
term with two (2)
one-year renewal

options

Marta Bolinska  $ 

B2 Nicely Done Brands
& Ads (HCHD-1048)

MWBE Goal: 0%
Minimal MWBE
Availability

Billboards for Harris Health System - The
additional amount is needed due to an increase
in utilization of billboard ad space to support an
additional campaign for Harris Health System.

Job No. 230160, Board Motion 23.06-95

Additional Funds

July 01, 2023
through

June 30, 2024

Amanda 
Callaway

 $  $ 

B3 Plus Technologies,
LLC (GA-06162)

MWBE Goal: Exempt
Sole Source

OM Plus Software Maintenance and Support
for Harris Health System - To continue
providing software support for OM Plus
software. The software allows information within
the Epic environment to route to Harris Health
printers.

Sole Source Exemption

Renewal 
Sole Source
Exemption

July 28, 2024
through

July 27, 2025

Ronald Fuschillo  $  $ 

B4 WebMD Health  
Services Group, Inc. 
(HCHD-1190) 

MWBE Goal: 0% 
Specialized,
Technical, or Unique 
in Nature

Monitoring Platform and Program for Health
Applications and Wearables for Harris Health
System - To provide a Monitoring Platform and
Program for Health Applications and Wearables
for Harris Health System.

Job No. 230295

Award
Best proposal

meeting
requirements

One (1) year initial
term with six (6)
one-year renewal

options

Michele 
Hunnicutt

B5 Cority Software
(USA) Inc.

MWBE Goal: Exempt
Public Health or
Safety

ReadySet™ for Healthcare Web-Based
Software Renewal for Harris Health
System - To provide support for the HIPAA and
CMS-compliant web-based software system for
clinically based, employee well-being solutions
including a COVID-19 module proving Travel
Screening Survey, Staff Exposure questionnaire,
and Patient Under Investigation (PUI) form for
case report information.

Public Health or Safety Exemption

Renewal 
Public Health or
Safety Exemption

March 12, 2024
through

March 11, 2025

J. Asaphat  $  $ 

B6 HBI Office
Solutions, Inc.

MWBE Goal: 100%

Furniture for Harris Health System - To
provide furniture for Casa de Amigos Health
Center.

Texas Multiple Award Schedule (TXMAS)
Cooperative Program

Award
Low quote

Cindy Perez  $ 

B7 CFI Mechanical, Inc. 

MWBE Goal: 5% 

Drive Replacement at Ben Taub Hospital for
Harris Health System - The drives are required
to control the hours of operation of the exhaust
fans in the kitchen and public restroom areas at
Ben Taub Hospital to reduce energy
consumption, reduce maintenance cost, and
increase the life of the equipment.

Choice Partners, a division of Harris County
Department of Education Cooperative
Program

Award 
Low quote

Patrick Casey  $ 

Page 10 of 12

79



76,999 76,999

69,662

67,440

66,636

62,766 65,904

62,000

61,964

246,150 53,550

No. Vendor
Description
Justification

Contract

Action
Basis of

Recommendation
Term

Project Owner
Previous
Amount

Current
Estimated

Cost

B8 Cook Medical LLC
(PP-CA-618)

MWBE Goal: Exempt
GPO

Vena Cava Filters - To provide Harris Health
System with stainless steel or nitinol basket-
shaped filters placed in the inferior vena cava to
prevent venous emboli from reaching the
cardiopulmonary circulation.

Premier Healthcare Alliance, L.P. Contract

Funding Yr. 1

August 01, 2023
through

July 31, 2024

Charles Motley  $  $

B9 Gunn Chevrolet LTD

MWBE Goal: 0% 
Drop Shipped 

Compact Vehicles for Harris Health
System - To provide three compact SUVs for
Harris Health System to support the Hospital at
Home initiative.

Texas Association of School Boards (TASB)
BuyBoard Cooperative Program

Purchase 
Only quote

Peka Owens  $ 

B10 FUJIFILM Sonosite,
Inc.

MWBE Goal: Exempt
GPO

Ultrasound Machine - To replace one (1)
existing point of care ultrasound machine past
its expected useful life with a new unit at the
Ambulatory Surgery Center.

Premier Healthcare Alliance, L.P. Contract

Award 
Best Offer(s)
Meeting

Requirements

Patrick Casey  $ 

B11 Optum360, LLC

MWBE Goal: Exempt
Public Health or
Safety

CPT (Current Procedural Terminology) Codes
for Epic License Data Profile - CPT codes are
used to classify medical diagnoses, procedures,
diagnostic tests, treatments, and equipment and
supplies, as well as to submit medical claims to
payers for procedures and services performed
by physicians, non-physician practitioners,
hospitals, laboratories, and outpatient facilities.
This is related to the Epic License Data Profile,
which includes information on the number of
users.

Public Health or Safety Exemption

Purchase 
Public Health or
Safety Exemption

January 01, 2024
through

December 31,
2024

Antony Kilty  $ 

B12 Digisonics, Inc.
(GA-07470)

MWBE Goal: 0%
Specialized,
Technical, or Unique
in Nature

Maintenance and Support for Digisonics
Obstetrics Software for Harris Health
System - To continue to provide Prima Support
services for clinical applications in the Obstetrics
Department at Ben Taub and Lyndon B. Johnson
Hospitals.

Sole Source Exemption

Renewal 
Sole Source
Exemption

September 01,
2023

through
August 31, 2024

Ronald Fuschillo  $  $ 

B13 RoadRunner
Restoration
Company, LLC

MWBE Goal: 11%

Painting Services and Related Work for
Harris County - To provide as-needed painting
services and related work for various Harris
Health System locations.

Job No. 220002

May 10, 2023
through

April 30, 2024

Terry Elliott  $ 

B14 GE Precision
Healthcare LLC

MWBE Goal: Exempt
GPO

Ultrasound Machine - To replace two (2)
bedside ultrasound machines past their
expected useful life with new units at Ben Taub
Hospital.

Premier Healthcare Alliance, L.P. Contract

Award 
Best Offer(s)
Meeting

Requirements

Patrick Casey  $ 

B15 Clear Channel
Outdoor

MWBE Goal: Exempt
Sole Source

Outdoor Advertising Posters for Harris
Health System - Additional funds are required
to cover additional advertising exposure on
neighborhood posters to residential and
commuter traffic inside Harris County.

Sole Source Exemption, Board Motion 23.08-
130

Additional Funds
Sole Source
Exemption

April 24, 2023
through

April 23, 2024

Amanda 
Callaway

 $  $

Page 11 of 12

80



52,446

45,000 30,000

1,256,548

(0)

No. Vendor
Description
Justification

Contract

Action
Basis of

Recommendation
Term

Project Owner
Previous
Amount

Current
Estimated

Cost

B16 Set Solutions, Inc.
[Choice Partners
#21/031KN-55]

MWBE Goal: 0%
Specialized,
Technical, or Unique
in Nature

Security Scorecard (SSC) Licensing for
Harris Health System - To provide for the
Security ScoreCard Licensing, which enables
third-party risk monitoring of vendors that
provide services and support to the organization.

Choice Partners, a division of Harris County
Department of Education Cooperative
Program

Purchase
Low quote

December 02,
2023

through
December 01,

2024

Tom Oduor  $

B17 Foster LLP (HCHD-
996)

MWBE Goal: 0%
Specialized,
Technical, or Unique
in Nature

Legal Services for Harris Health
System - Additional funds are required to cover
additional services related to immigration
services for H1B Workers.

Professional Services Exemption

Additional Funds 
Professional
Services
Exemption

July 01, 2023
through

June 30, 2024

L. Sara Thomas  $  $ 

Total
Expenditures

 $ 

Total
Revenue

 $ 

Page 12 of 12

81



 
 

Thursday, March 28, 2024 
 

Consideration of Acceptance of the Harris Health System January 2024 
Financial Report Subject to Audit 

 

 
 

Attached for your review and consideration is the January 2024 Financial Report. 
 
Administration recommends that the Board accept the financial report for the period ended 
January 31, 2024, subject to final audit.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Victoria Nikitin  
Executive Vice President – Chief Financial Officer 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CC4E1E11-F3F8-4120-B968-954F64CCBE13

82



As of the Month Ended January 31, 2024 
Subject to Audit

83



Financial Highlights Review…………………………………………………………………………………………………...….3 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Income Statement………………………………………………………………………….......................................................4

Balance Sheet……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………...5 

Cash Flow Summary……………………………………………..........................................................................................6 

Performance Ratios…………………………………………………………………………………..…………………………...7 

KEY STATISTICAL INDICATORS 

Statistical Highlights……………………………………………………………………...………………………………………..9 

Statistical Highlights Graphs…..………………………………………………………..……………............................10 – 21 

84



As of January 31, 2024 

 Harrishealth.org Page 3 

Operating income for January was $30.4 million compared to a budgeted income of $10.2 million. 

Total net revenue for January of $225.8 million was $8.2 million or 3.8% more than budget.  The favorable variance was driven 

primarily by a $15.3 million increase in net patient revenue, offset by an unfavorable variance of $8.2 million in Medicaid 

Supplemental programs due to timing. The increase in net patient revenue included a one-time settlement from CMS of $7.1 million 

received as remedy for the 340B Acquired Drug Payment Policy for calendar years 2018-2022. The agency outlined its plan to 

remedy nearly five years of unlawful Medicare Part B cuts to hospitals in the 340B Drug Pricing Program with $9 billion in lump-

sum Outpatient Prospective Payment System payments in the fall of 2023. 

In January, total expenses of $195.3 million were $12.0 million or 5.8% less than budget. Total labor costs were $2.5 million less 

than budget, total supplies were $3.1 million less than planned, and total services had a favorable variance of $6.9 million.  

Also in January, total patient days and average daily census increased 6.2% compared to budget.  Inpatient case mix index, a 

measure of patient acuity, was 0.3% lower than planned with length of stay 1.5% more than budget. Emergency room visits were 

3.8% higher than planned for the month. Total clinic visits, including telehealth, were 5.3% lower compared to budget. Births were 

up 0.2% for the month. 

Total cash receipts for January 2024 were $439.6 million, of which $366.8 million accounted for ad valorem taxes. The current 

portion of ad valorem taxes receivable is $415.8 million, which is offset by ad valorem tax collections as received.  Deferred ad 

valorem tax revenue is $606.0 million, and is released as ad valorem tax revenue is recognized.   Year to date as of January 31, 

$489.8 million ad valorem tax collections were received and $303.0 million in current ad valorem tax revenue was recognized for 

FY 2024. 

Harris Health System has $180.2 million in net accounts receivable, representing 87.8 days of outstanding patient accounts 

receivable at January 31, 2024. The January balance sheet reflects a combined net receivable position of $240.2 million under the 

various Medicaid Supplemental programs. The System has $1,426.7 million in unrestricted cash, cash equivalents and investments, 

representing 232.8 days cash on hand. 

85



As of January 31, 2024 and 2023 (in $ Millions)

MONTH-TO-MONTH YEAR-TO-DATE

CURRENT CURRENT PERCENT CURRENT CURRENT PERCENT PRIOR PERCENT

YEAR BUDGET VARIANCE YEAR BUDGET VARIANCE YEAR VARIANCE

REVENUE

Net Patient Revenue 73.4$   58.1$   26.2% 252.3$   232.3$   8.6% 243.4$   3.7%

Medicaid Supplemental Programs 59.9   68.0  -12.0% 223.5  272.2  -17.9% 224.8  -0.6%

Other Operating Revenue 12.3  11.1  10.9% 43.4  41.1  5.6% 39.0  11.3%

Total Operating Revenue 145.6$   137.3$   6.1% 519.2$   545.6$   -4.8% 507.2$   2.4%

Net Ad Valorem Taxes 76.4   74.7  2.2% 300.8  298.8  0.7% 277.1  8.6%

Net Tobacco Settlement Revenue -  -  0.0% -  -  0.0% - 0.0%

Capital Gifts & Grants -  -  0.0% -  -  0.0% 9.5   -100.0%

Interest Income & Other 3.8   5.5  -32.2% 20.1  22.2  -9.3% 17.5  14.9%

Total Nonoperating Revenue 80.1$   80.3$   -0.2% 320.9$   321.0$   0.0% 304.1$   5.5%

Total Net Revenue 225.8$   217.6$   3.8% 840.1$   866.6$   -3.1% 811.3$   3.6%

EXPENSE

Salaries and Wages 78.3$   79.3$   1.3% 312.9$   319.8$   2.2% 287.2$   -8.9%

Employee Benefits 28.0   29.5  5.1% 110.2  117.9  6.5% 92.0  -19.8%

Total Labor Cost 106.3$   108.8$   2.3% 423.2$   437.7$   3.3% 379.3$   -11.6%

Supply Expenses 22.9  26.1  12.0% 97.5  105.4  7.5% 99.6  2.1%

Physician Services 34.7  37.3  6.9% 138.9  149.0  6.8% 136.6  -1.7%

Purchased Services 22.5   26.8  16.1% 86.9  107.3  19.0% 84.1  -3.3%

Depreciation & Interest 8.9   8.4  -6.0% 34.7  31.2  -11.2% 29.0  -19.7%

Total Operating Expense 195.3$   207.4$   5.8% 781.1$   830.6$   6.0% 728.5$   -7.2%

Operating Income (Loss) 30.4$   10.2$   59.0$   36.0$   82.8$   

Total Margin % 13.5% 4.7% 7.0% 4.2% 10.2%

 Harrishealth.org Page 4

86



January 31, 2024 and 2023 (in $ Millions)

CURRENT PRIOR

YEAR YEAR

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Short Term Investments 1,426.7$   1,210.1$   

Net Patient Accounts Receivable 180.2  156.0  

Net Ad Valorem Taxes, Current Portion 415.8  -  

Other Current Assets 347.9  378.0  

Total Current Assets 2,370.5$   1,744.1$   

CAPITAL ASSETS

Plant, Property, & Equipment, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 540.1$   417.5$   

Construction in Progress 147.0  182.9  

Right of Use Assets 41.6  44.3  

Total Capital Assets 728.7$   644.6$   

ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE & RESTRICTED ASSETS

Debt Service & Capital Asset Funds 41.5$   40.1$   

LPPF Restricted Cash 141.9  145.6  

Capital Gift Proceeds 55.6  46.0  

Other - Restricted 1.0  0.9  
Total Assets Limited As to Use & Restricted Assets 240.0$   232.7$   

Other Assets 50.0  41.5  

Deferred Outflows of Resources 234.8  188.5  

Total Assets & Deferred Outflows of Resources 3,624.0$   2,851.5$   

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 330.5$   478.1$   

Employee Compensation & Related Liabilities 154.8  137.0  

Deferred Revenue - Ad Valorem 606.0  -  

Estimated Third-Party Payor Settlements 23.0  17.3  

Current Portion Long-Term Debt and Capital Leases 36.7  20.2  

Total Current Liabilities 1,151.1$   652.7$   

Long-Term Debt 297.8  330.8  

Net Pension & Post Employment Benefits Liability 780.2  597.1  

Other Long-Term Liabilities 7.0  7.9  

Deferred Inflows of Resources 115.3  218.7  

Total Liabilities 2,351.4$   1,807.3$   

Total Net Assets 1,272.6$   1,044.2$   

Total Liabilities & Net Assets 3,624.0$   2,851.5$   

 Harrishealth.org Page 5

87



As of January 31, 2024 and 2023 (in $ Millions)

MONTH-TO-MONTH YEAR-TO-DATE

CURRENT PRIOR CURRENT PRIOR

YEAR YEAR YEAR YEAR

CASH RECEIPTS 2 3 4 5 6

Collections on Patient Accounts 70.3$   53.6$   210.8$   156.9$   

Medicaid Supplemental Programs (29.9) 2.8 412.6 462.0

Net Ad Valorem Taxes 366.8 204.0 114.3 204.0

Tobacco Settlement -  -  -  -  

Other Revenue 32.4 9.7 41.7 66.8

Total Cash Receipts 439.6$   270.1$   779.4$   889.7$   

CASH DISBURSEMENTS

Salaries, Wages and Benefits 92.9$   108.3$   330.0$   313.1$   

Supplies 22.9 28.8 79.5 73.8

Physician Services 33.0 31.4 99.6 96.4

Purchased Services 19.8 18.6 67.5 52.5

Capital Expenditures 12.5 10.1 41.3 32.5

Debt and Interest Payments 0.2 0.4 0.8 0.9

Other Uses       12.6 (10.2) (7.7) (8.5)

Total Cash Disbursements 194.0$   187.3$   611.0$   560.8$   

Net Change 245.7$   82.8$   168.4$   328.9$   

Unrestricted Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments - Beginning of year 1,012.6$   

Net Change 414.0

Unrestricted Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments - End of period 1,426.7$   

 Harrishealth.org Page 6

88



As of January 31, 2024 and 2023 (in $ Millions)

MONTH-TO-MONTH YEAR-TO-DATE

CURRENT CURRENT CURRENT CURRENT PRIOR

YEAR BUDGET YEAR BUDGET YEAR

OPERATING HEALTH INDICATORS 3 4 6 7 8

Operating Margin % 13.5% 4.7% 7.0% 4.2% 10.2%

Run Rate per Day (In$ Millions) 6.0$    6.5$    6.1$    6.6$    5.7$    

Salary, Wages & Benefit per APD 2,443$    2,561$   2,432$   2,622$   2,271$   

Supply Cost per APD 527$    614$   561$   631$   596$   

Physician Services per APD 797$    877$   798$   892$   818$   

Total Expense per APD 4,488$   4,879$   4,489$   4,974$   4,363$   

Overtime as a % of Total Salaries 3.4% 2.9% 3.3% 2.9% 3.7%

Contract as a % of Total Salaries 4.2% 4.6% 4.8% 4.5% 5.5%

Full-time Equivalent Employees 10,288 9,922 10,322 10,116 9,840

FINANCIAL HEALTH INDICATORS

Quick Ratio 2.0 2.6

Unrestricted Cash (In $ Millions) 1,426.7$   1,270.0$   1,210.1$   

Days Cash on Hand 232.8 193.0 210.1

Days Revenue in Accounts Receivable 87.8   88.5 78.9

Days in Accounts Payable 82.2   78.7

Capital Expenditures/Depreciation & Amortization 189.4% 177.2%

Average Age of Plant(years) 10.3 10.9

 Harrishealth.org Page 7

89



Harris Health System 

Key Indicators  

90



As of January 31, 2024 and 2023

MONTH-TO-MONTH YEAR-TO-DATE
CURRENT CURRENT PERCENT CURRENT CURRENT PERCENT PRIOR PERCENT

YEAR BUDGET CHANGE YEAR BUDGET CHANGE YEAR CHANGE

Adjusted Patient Days 43,513 42,461 2.5% 173,974 169,671 2.5% 166,972 4.2%

Outpatient % of Adjusted Volume 60.2% 59.9% 0.5% 61.3% 60.8% 0.9% 60.0% 2.2%

Primary Care Clinic Visits 41,160 42,975 -4.2% 171,056 177,166 -3.4% 175,100 -2.3%

Specialty Clinic Visits 18,982 19,933 -4.8% 78,201 79,398 -1.5% 79,967 -2.2%

Telehealth Clinic Visits 9,707 10,883 -10.8% 37,812 43,906 -13.9% 43,252 -12.6%

Total Clinic Visits 69,849 73,791 -5.3% 287,069 300,470 -4.5% 298,319 -3.8%

Emergency Room Visits - Outpatient 11,615  11,212  3.6% 45,198  43,566  3.7% 43,757  3.3%

Emergency Room Visits - Admitted 1,846 1,759 4.9% 7,180 6,534 9.9% 7,258 -1.1%

Total Emergency Room Visits 13,461 12,971 3.8% 52,378 50,100 4.5% 51,015 2.7%

Surgery Cases - Outpatient 883 842 4.9% 3,711 3,307 12.2% 3,524 5.3%

Surgery Cases - Inpatient 837 881 -5.0% 3,234 3,409 -5.1% 3,221 0.4%

Total Surgery Cases 1,720 1,723 -0.2% 6,945 6,716 3.4% 6,745 3.0%

Total Outpatient Visits 116,088 121,055 -4.1% 471,001 489,959 -3.9% 486,858 -3.3%

Inpatient Cases (Discharges) 2,578 2,570 0.3% 10,585 10,606 -0.2% 10,953 -3.4%

Outpatient Observation Cases 924 865 6.8% 3,762 3,580 5.1% 3,223 16.7%

Total Cases Occupying Patient Beds 3,502 3,435 2.0% 14,347 14,186 1.1% 14,176 1.2%

Births 451 450 0.2% 1,768 1,920 -7.9% 1,990 -11.2%

Inpatient Days 17,335 17,034 1.8% 67,368 66,587 1.2% 66,846 0.8%

Outpatient Observation Days 3,242 2,346 38.2% 12,722 9,783 30.0% 10,186 24.9%

Total Patient Days 20,577 19,380 6.2% 80,090 76,370 4.9% 77,032 4.0%

Average Daily Census 663.8 625.2 6.2% 651.1 620.9 4.9% 626.3 4.0%

Average Operating Beds 696 702 -0.9% 696 702 -0.9% 681 2.2%

Bed Occupancy % 95.4% 89.1% 7.1% 93.6% 88.4% 5.8% 92.0% 1.7%

Inpatient Average Length of Stay 6.72 6.63 1.5% 6.36 6.28 1.4% 6.10 4.3%

Inpatient Case Mix Index (CMI) 1.689 1.694 -0.3% 1.682 1.694 -0.7% 1.674 0.5%

Payor Mix (% of Charges)

Charity & Self Pay 43.5% 44.3% -1.6% 44.8% 44.3% 1.2% 45.5% -1.6%

Medicaid & Medicaid Managed 19.9% 22.7% -12.1% 19.9% 22.7% -12.1% 23.5% -15.2%

Medicare & Medicare Managed 12.1% 11.4% 5.7% 11.8% 11.4% 3.8% 11.2% 6.0%

Commercial & Other 24.5% 21.7% 13.0% 23.5% 21.7% 8.3% 19.9% 18.3%

Total Unduplicated Patients - Rolling 12 246,821 248,285 -0.6%

Total New Patient - Rolling 12 88,761 86,124 3.1%

 Harrishealth.org Page 9

91



Harris Health System
Statistical Highlights

January FY 2024

Actual Budget Prior Year Actual Budget Prior Year Actual Budget Prior Year Actual Budget Prior Year

3,502 3,435 3,465 14,347 14,186 14,176 13,461 12,971 12,714 52,378 50,100 51,015

Cases Occupying Beds - CM Cases Occupying Beds - YTD Emergency Visits - CM Emergency Visits - YTD

11,615 11,212 10,866

1,846 1,759 1,848

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Emergency Visits - Current Month

EC Visits - Outpatient IP Emergency Admissions

45,198 43,566 43,757

7,180 6,534 7,258

0

15,000

30,000

45,000

60,000

75,000

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Emergency Visits - YTD

EC Visits - Outpatient IP Emergency Admissions

10,585 10,606 10,953

3,762 3,580 3,223

0

4,000

8,000

12,000

16,000

20,000

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Cases Occupying Beds - YTD

Inpatient Cases (Discharges) Outpatient Observation Cases

2,578 2,570 2,661

924 865 804

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Cases Occupying Beds - Current Month

Inpatient Cases (Discharges) Outpatient Observation Cases

92



Harris Health System
Statistical Highlights

January FY 2024

Actual Budget Prior Year Actual Budget Prior Year Actual Budget Prior Year Actual Budget Prior Year

1,720 1,723 1,805 6,945 6,716 6,745 69,849 73,791 74,000 287,069 300,470 298,319

Surgery Cases - YTD Clinic Visits  - CM Clinic Visits - YTDSurgery Cases - CM

41,160 42,975 43,626

18,982 19,933 19,589

9,707 10,883 10,785

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Clinic Visits - Current Month

Primary Care Clinics Specialty Clinics Telehealth Clinic Visits

171,056 177,166 175,100

78,201 79,398 79,967
37,812 43,906 43,252

0

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Clinic Visits - YTD

Primary Care Clinics Specialty Clinics Telehealth Clinic Visits

3,885 3,868 3,632

1,964 1,916 2,104

1,096 932 1,009

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Surgery Cases - YTD

Ben Taub Lyndon B. Johnson Ambulatory Surgical Center (ASC)

973 1,014 967

499 468 524

248 241 314

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Surgery Cases - Current Month

Ben Taub Lyndon B. Johnson Ambulatory Surgical Center (ASC)

93



Harris Health System
Statistical Highlights

January FY 2024

Adjusted Patient Days - CM Adjusted Patient Days - YTD Average Daily Census - CM Average Daily Census - YTD

43,513 173,974 663.8 651.1

43,513 42,461 42,492

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

Adjusted Patient Days - Current Month

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

663.8 625.2 634.8

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

Average Daily Census - CM

Average Daily Census - Current Month

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

651.1 620.9 626.3

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

Average Daily Census - CM

Average Daily Census - YTD

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

173,974 169,671 166,972

0

40,000

80,000

120,000

160,000

200,000

Adjusted Patient Days

Adjusted Patient Days - YTD

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

94



Harris Health System
Statistical Highlights

January FY 2024

Overall Overall

1.689 1.682

Inpatient ALOS - CM Inpatient ALOS - YTD

1.864 1.858

Case Mix Index (CMI) - CM Case Mix Index (CMI) - YTD

6.72 6.36
Excl. Obstetrics Excl. Obstetrics

6.72 6.63 6.46

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

Inpatient ALOS - CM

Inpatient ALOS - Current Month

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

1.689
1.864

1.694
1.870

1.716
1.901

0.000

0.500

1.000

1.500

2.000

2.500

CMI Overall CMI Excluding Obstetrics

Case Mix Index - Current Month

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

1.682
1.858

1.694
1.870

1.674
1.855

0.000

0.500

1.000

1.500

2.000

2.500

CMI Overall CMI Excluding Obstetrics

Case Mix Index - YTD

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

6.36 6.28 6.10

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

Inpatient ALOS - CM

Inpatient ALOS - YTD

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

95



Harris Health System
Statistical Highlights - Cases Occupying Beds

January FY 2024

Actual Budget Prior Year Actual Budget Prior Year Actual Budget Prior Year Actual Budget Prior Year

2,070 2,028 2,036 8,547 8,541 8,360 1,432 1,407 1,429 5,800 5,645 5,816

BT Cases Occupying Beds - CM BT Cases Occupying Beds - YTD LBJ Cases Occupying Beds - CM LBJ Cases Occupying Beds - YTD

1,079 1,062 1,085

353 345 344

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Lyndon B. Johnson Cases - Current Month

Inpatient Cases (Discharges) Outpatient Observation Cases

4,393 4,283 4,510

1,407 1,362 1,306

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Lyndon B. Johnson Cases - YTD

Inpatient Cases (Discharges) Outpatient Observation Cases

6,192 6,323 6,443

2,355 2,218 1,917

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Ben Taub Cases - YTD

Inpatient Cases (Discharges) Outpatient Observation Cases

1,499 1,508 1,576

571 520 460

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Ben Taub Cases - Current Month

Inpatient Cases (Discharges) Outpatient Observation Cases

96



Harris Health System
Statistical Highlights - Surgery Cases

January FY 2024

Actual Budget Prior Year Actual Budget Prior Year Actual Budget Prior Year Actual Budget Prior Year

973 1,014 967 3,885 3,868 3,632 747 709 838 3,060 2,848 3,113

BT Surgery Cases - YTD LBJ Surgery Cases - CM LBJ Surgery Cases - YTDBT Surgery Cases - CM

21,969

21,117 21,111

20,600

20,800

21,000

21,200

21,400

21,600

21,800

22,000

22,200

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Clinic Visits - Current Month

Adjusted Patient Days

86,598

83,304
82,508

80,000

81,000

82,000

83,000

84,000

85,000

86,000

87,000

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Clinic Visits - YTD

Adjusted Patient Days

0 0 0

819
782 803

0
100
200
300
400
500
600
700
800
900

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Surgery Cases - YTD

Births Births

0 0 0

213
194 204

0

50

100

150

200

250

Surgery Cases - Current Month 

Births Births

1,079 1,062 1,085

353 345 344

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Lyndon B. Johnson - Current Month

Inpatient Cases (Discharges) Outpatient Observation Cases

4,393 4,283 4,510

1,407 1,362 1,306

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Lyndon B. Johnson - YTD

Inpatient Cases (Discharges) Outpatient Observation Cases

6,192 6,323 6,443

2,355 2,218 1,917

0
1,000
2,000
3,000
4,000
5,000
6,000
7,000
8,000
9,000

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Ben Taub - YTD

Inpatient Cases (Discharges) Outpatient Observation Cases

1,499 1,508 1,576

571 520 460

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Ben Taub - Current Month

Inpatient Cases (Discharges) Outpatient Observation Cases

499 248468 241
524 314

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

Lyndon B. Johnson Ambulatory Surgical Center (ASC)

Lyndon B. Johnson OR Cases - Current Month

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

1,964
1,096

1,916 932
2,104

1,009

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

Lyndon B. Johnson Ambulatory Surgical Center (ASC)

Lyndon B. Johnson OR Cases - YTD

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

3,885 3,868 3,632

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Ben Taub OR Cases - YTD

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

973 1,014 967

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Ben Taub OR Cases - Current Month

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

97



Harris Health System
Statistical Highlights - Emergency Room Visits

January FY 2024

Actual Budget Prior Year Actual Budget Prior Year Actual Budget Prior Year Actual Budget Prior Year

6,874 6,478 6,343 27,582 24,495 24,805 6,587 6,493 6,371 24,796 25,605 26,210

BT Emergency Visits - CM BT Emergency Visits - YTD LBJ Emergency Visits - CM LBJ Emergency Visits - YTD

21,787

3,009

22,692

2,913

22,898

3,312

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

EC Visits - Outpatient IP Emergency Admissions

Average Daily Census - YTD

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

23,411

4,171

20,874

3,621

20,859

3,946

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

EC Visits - Outpatient IP Emergency Admissions

Adjusted Patient Days - YTD

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

5,788 5,692 5,535

799 801 836

0

3,000

6,000

9,000

12,000

15,000

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Lyndon B. Johnson EC Visits - Current Month

EC Visits - Outpatient IP Emergency Admissions

21,787 22,692 22,898

3,009 2,913 3,312

0

6,000

12,000

18,000

24,000

30,000

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Lyndon B. Johnson EC Visits - YTD

EC Visits - Outpatient IP Emergency Admissions

23,411 20,874 20,859

4,171
3,621 3,946

0

6,000

12,000

18,000

24,000

30,000

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Ben Taub EC Visits - YTD

EC Visits - Outpatient IP Emergency Admissions

5,827 5,520 5,331

1,047 958 1,012

0

3,000

6,000

9,000

12,000

15,000

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Ben Taub EC Visits - Current Month

EC Visits - Outpatient IP Emergency Admissions

98



Harris Health System
Statistical Highlights - Births

January FY 2024

Actual Budget Prior Year Actual Budget Prior Year Actual Budget Prior Year Actual Budget Prior Year

238 256 279 949 1,138 1,187 213 194 204 819 782 803

BT Births - CM LBJ Births - CM LBJ Births - YTDBT Births - YTD

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

1.2

Inpatient ALOS - Current Month

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

1.2

Case Mix Index - Current Month

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

1.2

Case Mix Index - YTD

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

1.2

Inpatient ALOS- YTD

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

21,787

3,009

22,692

2,913

22,898

3,312

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

EC Visits - Outpatient IP Emergency Admissions

Average Daily Census - YTD

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

23,411

4,171

20,874

3,621

20,859

3,946

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

EC Visits - Outpatient IP Emergency Admissions

Adjusted Patient Days - YTD

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

5,788 5,692 5,535

799
801

836

5,000
5,200
5,400
5,600
5,800
6,000
6,200
6,400
6,600
6,800

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Lyndon B. Johnson - Current Month

EC Visits - Outpatient IP Emergency Admissions

21,787 22,692 22,898

3,009 2,913 3,312

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Lyndon B. Johnson - YTD

EC Visits - Outpatient IP Emergency Admissions

23,411 20,874 20,859

4,171
3,621 3,946

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Ben Taub - YTD

EC Visits - Outpatient IP Emergency Admissions

5,827 5,520 5,331

1,047 958 1,012

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Ben Taub - Current Month

EC Visits - Outpatient IP Emergency Admissions

21,969

21,117 21,111

20,600

20,800

21,000

21,200

21,400

21,600

21,800

22,000

22,200

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Clinic Visits - Current Month

Adjusted Patient Days

86,598

83,304
82,508

80,000

81,000

82,000

83,000

84,000

85,000

86,000

87,000

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Clinic Visits - YTD

Adjusted Patient Days

0 0 0

819
782 803

0
100
200
300
400
500
600
700
800
900

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Surgery Cases - YTD

Births Births

0 0 0

213
194 204

0

50

100

150

200

250

Surgery Cases - Current Month 

Births Births

1,079 1,062 1,085

353 345 344

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Lyndon B. Johnson - Current Month

Inpatient Cases (Discharges) Outpatient Observation Cases

4,393 4,283 4,510

1,407 1,362 1,306

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Lyndon B. Johnson - YTD

Inpatient Cases (Discharges) Outpatient Observation Cases

6,192 6,323 6,443

2,355 2,218 1,917

0
1,000
2,000
3,000
4,000
5,000
6,000
7,000
8,000
9,000

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Ben Taub - YTD

Inpatient Cases (Discharges) Outpatient Observation Cases

1,499 1,508 1,576

571 520 460

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

Ben Taub - Current Month

Inpatient Cases (Discharges) Outpatient Observation Cases

213 194 204

0

100

200

300

400

500

Births

Lyndon B. Johnson Births - Current Month

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

819 782 803

0

300

600

900

1,200

1,500

Births

Lyndon B. Johnson Births - YTD

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

949
1,138 1,187

0

300

600

900

1,200

1,500
Ben Taub Births - YTD

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

238 256 279

0

100

200

300

400

500
Ben Taub Births - Current Month

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

99



Harris Health System
Statistical Highlights - Adjusted Patient Days

January FY 2024

BT Adjusted Patient Days - CM BT Adjusted Patient Days - YTD LBJ Adjusted Patient Days - CM LBJ Adjusted Patient Days - YTD

21,969 86,598 13,179 53,656

21,969 21,117 21,111

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

Ben Taub APD - Current Month

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

13,179 13,479 13,441

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

Lyndon B. Johnson APD - Current Month

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

53,656 54,458 52,662

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

Lyndon B. Johnson APD - YTD

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

86,598 83,304 82,508

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

Ben Taub APD - YTD

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

100



Harris Health System
Statistical Highlights - Average Daily Census (ADC)

January FY 2024

BT Average Daily Census - YTD LBJ Average Daily Census - CM LBJ Average Daily Census - YTDBT Average Daily Census - CM

435.9 423.9 227.8 227.2

435.9 405.1 406.2

0.0

200.0

400.0

600.0

800.0

1,000.0

Ben Taub ADC - Current Month

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

227.8 220.0 228.6

0.0

200.0

400.0

600.0

800.0

1,000.0

Lyndon B. Johnson ADC - Current Month

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

227.2 216.0 223.2

0.0

200.0

400.0

600.0

800.0

1,000.0

Lyndon B. Johnson ADC - YTD

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

423.9 404.9 403.1

0.0

200.0

400.0

600.0

800.0

1,000.0

BT Average Daily Census

Ben Taub ADC - YTD

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

101



Harris Health System
Statistical Highlights - Inpatient Average Length of Stay (ALOS)

January FY 2024

7.57 7.05 5.56 5.40

BT Inpatient ALOS - CM BT Inpatient ALOS - YTD LBJ Inpatient ALOS - CM LBJ Inpatient ALOS - YTD

7.57 7.31 7.00

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

Ben Taub ALOS - Current Month

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

5.56 5.67 5.66

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

Lyndon B. Johnson ALOS - Current Month

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

5.40 5.46 5.28

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

Lyndon B. Johnson ALOS - YTD

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

7.05 6.84 6.68

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

Ben Taub ALOS - YTD

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

102



Harris Health System
Statistical Highlights - Case Mix Index (CMI)

January FY 2024

Overall Overall Overall Overall
1.844 1.798 1.473 1.520

BT Case Mix Index (CMI) - CM BT Case Mix Index (CMI) - YTD LBJ Case Mix Index (CMI) - CM LBJ Case Mix Index (CMI) - YTD
Excl. Obstetrics Excl. Obstetrics

2.024 1.984
Excl. Obstetrics

1.677
Excl. Obstetrics

1.630

1.844
2.024

1.811
1.9961.884

2.091

0.000

0.500

1.000

1.500

2.000

2.500

CMI Overall CMI Excluding Obstetrics

Ben Taub CMI - Current Month

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

1.473
1.6301.531

1.683
1.473

1.621

0.000

0.500

1.000

1.500

2.000

2.500

CMI Overall CMI Excluding Obstetrics

Lyndon B. Johnson CMI - Current Month

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

1.520
1.677

1.531
1.683

1.511
1.660

0.000

0.500

1.000

1.500

2.000

2.500

CMI Overall CMI Excluding Obstetrics

Lyndon B. Johnson CMI - YTD

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

1.798
1.984

1.811
1.996

1.788
1.993

0.000

0.500

1.000

1.500

2.000

2.500

CMI Overall CMI Excluding Obstetrics

Ben Taub CMI - YTD

ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2024 PRIOR YEAR

103



 
 

Thursday, March 28, 2024 
 

Consideration of Approval to enter into a new Inter-local Agreement with Harris County 
Department of Economic Equity & Opportunity (DEEO) to provide wage rate compliance 

services for Harris Health System construction projects 
 

 
 
The Harris County Hospital District d/b/a Harris Health System is currently in an inter-local agreement 
with Harris County Public Infrastructure Department (HCPID) to provide wage rate compliance and 
bonds/insurance verification services. The current inter-local agreement automatically renews 
beginning March 1st of each year and allows both parties an option to terminate the contract with a 
30-days written notification. The services being performed under HCPID are being transitioned under 
the Department of Economic Equity & Opportunity (DEEO). 
 
Administration recommends approval to enter into a new inter-local agreement with Harris County 
DEEO to provide wage rate compliance services for construction projects. The initial term is from 
March 1, 2024 to September 30, 2025 at a rate of $211,769.32 and renews annually beginning October 
1, 2025 to align with the fiscal year.  
 
 
 
 

  
Patrick Casey  
Senior Vice President – Facilities Construction & Systems Engineering  

 
 

  
Louis G. Smith, Jr.  
Senior Executive Vice President/Chief Operating Officer 

 

104



 
 

Thursday, March 28, 2024 
 

Consideration of Approval to Amend and Renew the lease with Benjamin Wu for the 
Sunset Heights Clinic located at 1623 Airline, Houston, Texas 77009 

 
 

 
Administration recommends Board of Trustees approval to amend and renew the Sunset Heights 
Clinic lease with Benjamin Wu from April 1, 2024 through March 31, 2029, at an initial estimated 
monthly rate of $14,919.90 ($179,038.75/yr.) which includes an estimated pro-rata share of the 
common area maintenance and operating expenses due under the lease terms.  
 
 
 
 

  
Patrick Casey  
Senior Vice President – Facilities Construction & Systems Engineering  

 
 

  
Louis G. Smith, Jr.  
Senior Executive Vice President/Chief Operating Officer 

 

105



BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Sunset Heights Clinic
Benjamin Wu
March 28, 2024
Page 2

Fact Sheet

Purpose of Lease: Ambulatory Care Clinic

Lessor: Benjamin Wu

Lessee: Harris Health System

Location of Lease Space: 1623 Airline Drive
Houston, Texas 77009

Lease Space: Approximately 4,939 square feet

Lease Term: 5 years

Lease Terms Monthly 
Lease Rate

Est. Monthly 
Operating 
Expenses

Est. 
Monthly 
Payment

Est. Annual 
Payment

Gross Annual 
Rate

Year 1: April 1, 2024 – March 31, 2025 $12,347.50 $2,572.40 $14,919.90 $179,038.75 $36.25
Year 2: April 1, 2025 – March 31, 2026 $12,656.19 $2,572.40 $15,228.58 $182,743.00 $37.00
Year 3: April 1, 2026 – March 31, 2027 $12,964.88 $2,572.40 $15,537.27 $186,447.25 $37.75
Year 4: April 1, 2027 – March 31, 2028 $13,273.56 $2,572.40 $15,845.96 $190,151.50 $38.50
Year 5: April 1, 2028 – March 31, 2029 $13,582.25 $2,572.40 $16,154.65 $193,855.75 $39.25

106



 
 

Thursday, March 28, 2024 
 

Consideration of Approval to Convey a Non-Exclusive Utility Easement and 
Right of Way to Crown Castle Fiber, LLC at Lyndon B. Johnson Hospital,  

5656 Kelley St, Houston, Texas 77026 
 
 

 
Administration recommends Board of Trustees approval to authorize the conveyance of a non-
exclusive easement and Right of Way to Crown Castle Fiber LLC for utilities to be located along a three 
foot (3’) wide right-of-way extending from the nearest public right-of-way to Harris Health System’s 
wireless communication equipment within the building at 5656 Kelley St, Houston, Texas 77026.  
 
The easement is identified as “a proposed 3-foot-wide fiber easement being a part of a 50.83-acre tract 
or land in Kashmere Gardens Park Partial Replat No. 2 and Extension, Unrestricted Reserve “A”, Block 
1, W.P. Harris Survey and Robert Wilson Survey, Abstract No. 32, City of Houston, Harris County, 
Texas” as detailed in the attached survey sketches.  
 
 
 
 

  
Patrick Casey  
Senior Vice President – Facilities Construction & Systems Engineering  

 
 

  
Louis G. Smith, Jr.  
Senior Executive Vice President/Chief Operating Officer 

 

107



108



109



110



 
 

Thursday, March 28, 2024 
 

Consideration of Approval to Amend the Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery Services Agreement 
with The University of Texas Health Science Center at Houston 

 
 

 
 

Administration requests approval of an amendment (“Amendment”) to the Oral and Maxillofacial 
Surgery Services Agreement (“Agreement”) with The University of Texas Health Science Center at 
Houston (“UTHealth”).  Pursuant to the Agreement, UTHealth provides oral and maxillofacial surgery 
and orthodontic professional services (“Services”) to Harris Health patients.  
 
Harris Health, in consultation with a third-party valuation firm, and UTHealth have agreed to amend the 
Total Compensation Amount in the Agreement for the fourth Contract Year (July 1, 2023 through June 
30, 2024) in an amount not to exceed $5,308,740. This amount represents an increase of $260,244 over 
the prospective Total Compensation Amount, previously approved by the Board of Trustees. The parties 
have also agreed to revise Performance Metrics as part of this Amendment. 
 
Administration recommends approval of the Amendment for purposes of ensuring the continued 
provision of Services to Harris Health patients. 
 
 
 
 

  
Jennifer Small  
Executive Vice President, Ambulatory Care Services 

 
 
   
  
 
 
 
 
 

  

 

111



 
 

Thursday, March 28, 2024 
 

Consideration of approval to amend the Administrative Services Agreement Between 
Harris Health System and Community Health Choice, Inc. and Community Health Choice 

Texas, Inc. to address regulatory requirements 
 

 
 
The current Amended and Restated Harris Health System and Community Health Choice 
Administrative Services Agreement (“Agreement”) sets forth services and support that may be 
provided by Harris Health to Community Health Choice (“Community”) and the payment parameters 
for such services and other reimbursable items.  Community was recently awarded a contract by the 
Texas Health and Human Services Commission (“HHSC”) to administer STAR+Plus in the Harris 
Service Area.  To comply with certain statutory and HHSC contract requirements, Harris Health and 
Community propose to revise and update the Texas Medicaid Regulatory Addendum to include a 
disclosure of ownership and control clause.     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Chris Buley  
Chief Legal Officer  
Community Health Choice  

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FDD46C52-9683-4033-86E5-0939A8679734

112



 
 

Thursday, March 28, 2024 
 

Harris Health System Legislative Initiatives 
 

 
 
Updates Regarding Pending State and Federal Legislative and Policy Issues Impacting Harris Health 
System. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
King Hillier 
V.P., Public Policy & Government Relations 

 
 
 
 

113



1

Harris Health System
4800 Fournace Place
Bellaire, Texas 77401

March 28, 2023
Board of Trustees Monthly Report

Federal Update

Front Line Hospital Alliance (FLHA) Update: During a March 11-13 trip to DC, Dr. Porsa met 
with other FLHA CEOs from Indianapolis, Denver, Lubbock, and Cleveland for a productive 
round of Hill visits. During the business strategy meeting Monday afternoon Dr. Porsa assumed 
the role of FLHA Chair along with Dr. Lisa Harris of Eskenazi Health in Indianapolis.

These CEOs collectively and individually met with several leadership and key committee offices 
in both the House and Senate including Senator John Thune (SD), Senate Finance Committee 
Majority and Minority Staff, and House Energy and Commerce Committee senior members, 
Representatives Bob Latta (OH) and Richard Hudson (NC).

Dr. Porsa also met with key members of the Harris County Delegation including Sylvia Garcia, Al 
Green, Lizzie Fletcher, Randy Weber and policy staffers for Dan Crenshaw and Senator Cornyn.

Garnering a formal statutory designation is the key priority for the FLHA and there are two bills
that have been introduced - HR 7327 and S 3450 – to achieve that goal.  This designation would 
codify a definition in federal law that would designate Harris Health facilities as “super” safety 
net hospitals.  The legislation as drafted would confer the same status on seven hospitals in 
Texas and approximately 130 nationwide. 

Shortly after the FLHA bills were filed, Americas Essential Hospitals filed similar legislation (HR 
7397) which would designate over 1,000 hospitals as “Essential Heath Systems.”  Under this 
broad definition, 1 in 3 hospitals nationwide would qualify including all the TMC Houston area 
health systems.

The FLHA message was very well received in all meetings and the general consensus from 
members and staff was that the more limited definition was preferable and they responded 
very favorably to Dr. Porsa’s underlying message that “if everyone is a safety net hospital, then 
no one is a safety net hospital.”

Designation is critical for the super safety net as we continue to differentiate Harris Health from 
other systems in current and future policy debates over the 340B program, facility fee/site 
neutral policy debates, and future supplemental funding during pandemics and disasters.

114



2

Attached are summaries of the legislation, a comparative analysis of designation initiatives by 
FLHA, AEH, and AHA; and a list of FLHA urban designated health systems.

Fiscal Year 2024 Budget Update: Congress averted a government shutdown with new stopgap 
funding and has released a six-bill omnibus appropriations package for the remainder of the
fiscal year (FY) that would eliminate an $8 billion cut to Medicaid disproportionate share 
hospital (DSH) funding and delay the next year’s DSH cut.

That proposed legislation would eliminate the $8 billion, FY 2024 cut to Medicaid DSH and delay 
the $8 billion, FY 2025 cut until Jan. 1, 2025, allowing lawmakers to put off a decision on DSH 
cuts until after the general election. The proposal does not include policies for Medicare site-
neutral payments, hospital pricing transparency, or pharmacy benefit manager reforms.

Immigration Issues: The House Committee on Ways and Means Committee Chair Jason Smith
(R-Mo.) and other committee Republicans sent a letter to Health and Human Services Secretary
Xavier Becerra calling on Becerra to address the impact of the border crisis on access to care.
Denver Health was cited in the letter as an example of a safety net health system struggling to
keep pace with the influx of new patients. We are currently analyzing Harris Health data in
anticipation of inquiries from elected officials or the media. Once the review is complete the
results will be shared. Anecdotally, in consultation with the medical staff and leadership there
has been no notable shift in the populations we have traditionally served.

Leadership Changes: Senate Republican Leader Mitch McConnell (R-Ky.) announced that he
will step down from his leadership position in November.

Senator John Cornyn and Senator John Thune (R-SD) have announced their candidacies to
replace Majority Leader McConnell. Senate leadership elections will likely occur in November
after the general election results are finalized and control of the Senate is determined.

115

https://waysandmeans.house.gov/wp-content/uploads/2024/02/WM-Letter-to-Becerra-Health-Care-Safety-Net.pdf
https://waysandmeans.house.gov/wp-content/uploads/2024/02/WM-Letter-to-Becerra-Health-Care-Safety-Net.pdf


116



117



118



119



120



121



Comparison of Urban Safety-Net Hospital Definitions 

Front line Hospital Alliance: "Front Line Multimission American Hospital Association: "Metropolitan America's Essential Hospitals: "Essential 

Hospital" Designation in H.R 7327, with slight Anchor Hospital" Designation Health System" Designation in H.R. 

qualifying differences in S. 3450 7397 

Definition Public hospital ;,100 beds with CMI a.3; IRB ;,0.17 or Hospital located in a core-based statistical Subsection (d) hospital that is a non-

;,125 residents and Medicare DPP ;,40%; or Nonprofit area (CBSA); MIUR > statewide average; and Federal governmental or private 

hospital 200-1000 beds with DPP ;,45%, CMI ;,1.5, IRB meet at least one of the requirements: DPP) of nonprofit hospital; and is either 

;,0.19 or ;,150 residents; or if 40-45% DPP, 70% or higher; a DPP of;, 35% and average Medicaid deemed DSH; Medicare DPP 

disproportionate bed count ;,2so, CMI ;, 2.0; IRB ;,0.2 UCC;, $35,000 per bed; or be designated by ;,35 percent; or has a Medicare 

or ;,175 residents; or if ;,1000 beds, a DPP ;,55%. the state as a "necessary provider" of health disproportionate share hospital 

care services to residents in the area. uncompensated care payment factor 

;,0.0005. 

Number of According to FLHA, 137 hospitals qualify under H.R. According to AHA, about 465 hospitals, or just According to AEH, 1051 hospitals qualify 

Qualifying 7327, which constitutes 4.3% of IPPS Subsection (d) over one out of every eight urban hospitals, under H.R. 7397, which constitutes 

Hospitals hospitals. would be designated as MAHs, not including approximately 32% of IPPS Subsection 

those hospitals that a state may designate as (d) hospitals.

a "necessary provider." 

Substantive H.R. 7327: States must have a public process to set Not specified Not specified 

Benefit of Medicaid rates that considers the financial viability of 

H.R. 7327 Front line Multimission hospitals, and those within 

and S. 3450 100 miles of the state border providing tertiary 

services, and provide stable, predictable and sufficient 

reimbursement to sustain financial viability of 

qualifying hospitals to ensure that care and services 

are available under the State plan comparable to the 

general population. States may use Medicaid DSH 

funding to reimburse qualifying hospitals for 

uncompensated physician, clinic and EMS costs above 

their hospital specific DSH limit. S. 3450: Front line 

Multimission hospitals are eligible, along with 

specified high-DSH rural hospitals, to enter into 

collaborative agreements with HHS to secure seed 

funding to address serious mental and physical health 

comorbidities on a community specific basis. 

122



Explanation of Terms: 

• CBSA -- Core-based statistical area, reflecting urban or large population center as defined by the Office of Management and

Budget.

• CMI - Case mix index, reflecting patient acuity and complexity on Medicare cost report.

• DPP - Medicare disproportionate patient percentage, reflecting services provided to Medicaid and 551 beneficiaries on

Medicare cost report.

• Disproportionate Bed Count - product of a hospital's DPP and number of beds in a fiscal year, both on Medicare cost report.

• Disproportionate Hospital Uncompensated Care Factor.

• IRB- intern and resident to bed ratio on Medicare cost report.

• MIUR - Medicaid inpatient utilization rate as defined in Section 1923{b) of the SSA.

• Medicaid Deemed DSH - as defined in Section 1923{b) of the SSA.

• UCC - uncompensated care costs.

2 

123



30002 

30022 

30064 

40016 

50025 

50038 

50040 

50057 

50060 

50077 

50084 

50093 

50103 

50129 

50167 

137 Hospitals Qualifying for Front Line Multimission Designation in H.R. 7327 

As of 2.9.2024 

BANNER UNIVERSITY MEDICAL 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit PHOENIX 
CENTER PHX 

VALLEYWISE HEALTH MEDICAL 11 (Governmental, Hospital Governmental PHOENIX 
CENTER District) 

BANNER UNIVERSITY MED CENTER 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit TUCSON 
TUCSON 

UAMS MEDICAL CENTER 10 (Governmental, State) Governmental LITTLE ROCK 

UCSD MEDICAL CENTER 10 (Governmental, State) Governmental SAN DIEGO 

SANTA CLARA VALLEY MEDICAL 9 (Governmental, County) Governmental SAN JOSE 
CENTER 

LAC OLIVE VIEW/UCLA MEDICAL 9 (Governmental, County) Governmental SYLMAR 
CENTER 

KAWEAH DELTA MEDICAL CENTER 11 (Governmental, Hospital Governmental VISALIA 
District) 

COMMUNITY REGIONAL MEDICAL 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit FRESNO 
CENTER 

SCRIPPS MERCY HOSPITAL 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit SAN DIEGO 

ST. JOSEPHS MEDICAL CENTER 1 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Church) Nonprofit STOCKTON 

ST. AGNES MEDICAL CENTER 1 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Church) Nonprofit FRESNO 

ADVENTIST HEALTH WHITE 1 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Church) Nonprofit LOS ANGELES 
MEMORIAL 

ST. BERNARDINE MEDICAL CENTER 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit SAN BERNARDINO 

SAN JOAQUIN GENERAL HOSPITAL 9 (Governmental, County) Governmental FRENCH CAMP 

Al 

AZ 

Al 

AR 

CA 

CA 

CA 

CA 

CA 

CA 

CA 

CA 

CA 

CA 

CA 

124



50228 ZUCKERBERG SAN FRANCISCO 8 (Governmental, City-County) Governmental SAN FRANCISCO CA 

GENERAL 

50245 ARROWHEAD REGIONAL MEDICAL 9 (Governmental, County) Governmental COLTON CA 

CENTER 

50261 SIERRA VIEW MEDICAL CENTER 11 (Governmental, Hospital Governmental PORTERVILLE CA 

District) 

50262 RONALD REAGAN UCLA 10 (Governmental, State) Governmental LOS ANGELES CA 

50276 CONTRA COSTA REGIONAL 9 (Governmental, County) Governmental MARTINEZ CA 

MEDICAL CENTER 

50292 RIVERSIDE UNIVERSITY HEALTH 9 (Governmental, County) Governmental MORENO VALLEY CA 

SYSTEM 

50315 KERN MEDICAL CENTER 9 (Governmental, County) Governmental BAKERSFIELD CA 

50320 ALAMEDA HEALTH SYSTEM 9 (Governmental, County) Governmental OAKLAND CA 

50327 LOMA LINDA UNIVERSITY MEDICAL 1 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Church) Nonprofit LOMA LINDA CA 

CENTER 

50348 UCI MEDICAL CENTER 10 (Governmental, State) Governmental ORANGE CA 

50373 LOS ANGELES GENERAL MEDICAL 9 (Governmental, County) Governmental LOS ANGELES CA 

CENTER 

50376 HARBOR-UCLA MEDICAL CENTER 9 (Governmental, County) Governmental TORRANCE CA 

50454 UCSF MEDICAL CENTER 10 (Governmental, State) Governmental SAN FRANCISCO CA 

50599 UC DAVIS MEDICAL CENTER 10 (Governmental, State) Governmental SACRAMENTO CA 

60011 DENVER HEALTH MEDICAL CENTER 10 (Governmental, State) Governmental DENVER co 

2 

125



60024 UNIVERSITY OF CO HOSPITAL 13 (Governmental, Other) Governmental AURORA co 

90003 HOWARD UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit WASHINGTON DC 

90011 WASHINGTON HOSPITAL CENTER 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit WASHINGTON DC 

100001 SHANDS JACKSONVILLE MEDICAL 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit JACKSONVILLE FL 

CENTER 

100022 JACKSON MEMORIAL 9 (Governmental, County) Governmental MIAMI FL 

100039 BROWARD HEALTH MEDICAL 11 (Governmental, Hospital Governmental FT. LAUDERDALE FL 

CENTER District) 

100113 UF HEALTH SHANDS 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit GAi NESVILLE FL 

100128 TAMPA GENERAL HOSPITAL 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit TAMPA FL 

110036 MEMORIAL HEALTH UNIV MED 9 (Governmental, County) Governmental SAVANNAH GA 

CENTER 

110079 GRADY MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 9 (Governmental, County) Governmental ATLANTA GA 

140018 MOUNT SINAI HOSPITAL MEDICAL 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit CHICAGO IL 

CENTER 

140088 UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit CHICAGO IL 

HOSPITALS 

140124 JOHN H. STROGER JR. HOSP OF 9 (Governmental, County) Governmental CHICAGO IL 

COOK CTY 

140150 BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 10 (Governmental, State) Governmental CHICAGO IL 

UNIVERSITY 

140180 PRESENCE SAINTS MARY & 1 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Church) Nonprofit CHICAGO IL 

ELIZABETH MED 

3 

126



150024 ESKENAZI HEALTH 9 (Governmental, County) Governmental INDIANAPOLIS IN 

160058 UNIVERSITY OF IOWA HOSP & 10 (Governmental, State) Governmental IOWA CITY IA 
CLINICS 

160101 BROADLAWN$ MEDICAL CENTER 9 (Governmental, County) Governmental DES MOINES IA 

180141 UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit LOUISVILLE KY 

HOSPITAL 

190005 UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CTR. AT 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit NEW ORLEANS 
NEW ORLEA 

190064 OUR LADY OF THE LAKE RMC 1 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Church) Nonprofit BATON ROUGE LA 

190098 OCHSNER LSU HEALTH 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit SHREVEPORT LA 
SHREVEPORT 

210002 UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND MED 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit BALTIMORE MD 
SYS 

210003 UNIV OF MD CAPITAL REGION 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit LAUREL MD 
MED CTR 

210038 MARYLAND GENERAL HOSPITAL 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit BALTIMORE MD 

220011 CAMBRIDGE HEALTH ALLIANCE 13 (Governmental, Other) Governmental MALDEN MA 

220031 BOSTON MEDICAL CENTER 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit BOSTON MA 

230020 BEAU MONT HOSPITAL - 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit DEARBORN Ml 
DEARBORN 

230053 HENRY FORD HOSPITAL 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit DETROIT Ml 

230132 HURLEY MEDICAL CENTER 12 (Governmental, City) Governmental FLINT Ml 

4 

127



230165 ASCENSION ST JOHN HOSPITAL 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit DETROIT Ml 

240004 HENNEPIN COUNTY MEDICAL 9 (Governmental, County) Governmental MINNEAPOLIS MN 
CENTER 

250001 UNIVERSITY OF MISSISSIPPI 10 (Governmental, State) Governmental JACKSON MS 
MEDICAL 

260048 UNIVERSITY HEALTH TRUMAN 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit KANSAS CITY MO 
MED CENTER 

260091 SSM HEALTH ST. MARYS HOSPITAL 1 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Church) Nonprofit ST. LOUIS MO 
-STL

260141 UNIV OF MISSOURI HEALTH CARE 13 (Governmental, Other) Governmental COLUMBIA MO 

280060 CHI HEALTH CREIGHTON 1 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Church) Nonprofit OMAHA NE 
UNIVERSITY BERG 

290007 UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER 9 (Governmental, County) Governmental LAS VEGAS NV 

310002 NEWARK BETH ISRAEL MEDICAL 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit NEWARK NJ 
CENTER 

310014 COOPER UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit CAMDEN NJ 

310019 ST. JOSEPHS UNIVERSITY MEDICAL 1 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Church) Nonprofit PATERSON NJ 
CENT 

310027 TRINITAS HOSPITAL 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit ELIZABETH NJ 

310074 JERSEY CITY MEDICAL CENTER 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit JERSEY CITY NJ 

310119 UH - UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL 10 (Governmental, State) Governmental NEWARK NJ 

320001 UNIVERSITY OF NEW MEXICO 10 (Governmental, State) Governmental ALBUQUERQUE NM 
HOSPITAL 

5 

128



330009 BRONXCARE HEALTH SYSTEM 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit BRONX NY 

330014 JAMAICA HOSPITAL MEDICAL 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit JAMAICA NY 
CENTER 

330027 NASSAU UNIVERSITY MEDICAL 9 (Governmental, County) Governmental EAST MEADOW NY 
CENTER 

330028 RICHMOND UNIVERSITY MEDICAL 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit STATEN ISLAND NY 

CENTER 

330046 MOUNT SINAI ST. LUKES 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit NEW YORK NY 
ROOSEVELT HOS 

330055 NEWYORK- 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit FLUSHING NY 
PRESBYTERIAN/QUEENS 

330056 THE BROOKLYN HOSPITAL CENTER 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit BROOKLYN NY 

330059 MONTEFIORE MEDICAL CENTER 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit BRONX NY 

330080 LINCOLN MEDICAL&MENTAL 12 (Governmental, City) Governmental BRONX NY 
HEALTH CENTER 

330127 JACOBI MEDICAL CENTER 12 (Governmental, City) Governmental BRONX NY 

330128 ELMHURST HOSPITAL CENTER 12 (Governmental, City) Governmental ELMHURST NY 

330169 MOUNT SINAI HEALTH SYSTEM- 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit NEW YORK NY 
BETHISRAE 

330193 FLUSHING HOSPITAL MEDICAL 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit FLUSHING NY 

CENTER 

330194 MAIMONIDES MEDICAL CENTER 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit BROOKLYN NY 

6 

129



330196 NYC HEALTH+ HOSPITAL/ SOUTH 12 (Governmental, City) Govern mental BROOKLYN NY 
BROOKL 

330199 METROPOLITAN HOSPITAL CENTER 12 (Governmental, City) Governmental NEW YORK NY 

330202 NYC HEALTH+HOSPITAL/KINGS 12 (Governmental, City) Governmental BROOKLYN NY 
COUNTY 

330204 BELLEVUE HOSPITAL CENTER 12 (Governmental, City) Governmental NEW YORK NY 

330219 ERIE COUNTY MEDICAL CENTER 9 (Governmental, County) Governmental BUFFALO NY 

330221 WYCKOFF HEIGHTS MEDICAL 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit BROOKLYN NY 
CENTER 

330231 QUEENS HOSPITAL CENTER 12 (Governmental, City) Governmental JAMAICA NY 

330233 BROOKDALE HOSPITAL MEDICAL 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit BROOKLYN NY 
CENTER 

330234 WESTCHESTER MEDICAL CENTER 10 (Governmental, State) Governmental VALHALLA NY 

330236 NEW YORK- 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit BROOKLYN NY 
PRESBYTERIAN/BROOKLYN METHO 

330240 HARLEM HOSPITAL CENTER 12 (Governmental, City) Governmental NEW YORK NY 

330241 UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL AT 10 (Governmental, State) Governmental SYRACUSE NY 
SYRACUSE 

330285 STRONG MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit ROCHESTER NY 

330350 UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL OF 10 (Governmental, State) Governmental BROOKLYN NY 
BROOKLYN 

330396 WOODHULL HOSPTIAL CENTER 12 (Governmental, City) Governmental BROOKLYN NY 

7 

130



330399 SBH HEALTH SYSTEM 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit BRONX NY 

340028 CAPE FEAR VALLEY MEDI CAL 9 (Governmental, County) Governmental FAYETTEVILLE NC 
CENTER 

340047 NORTH CAROLINA BAPTIST 1 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Church) Nonprofit WINSTON-SALEM NC 
HOSPITAL 

340113 CAROLINAS MEDICAL CENTER 11 (Governmental, Hospital Governmental CHARLOTTE NC 
District) 

360003 UNIVER.OF CINCINNATI MED 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit CINCINNATI OH 
CENTER LLC 

360059 METROHEALTH MEDICAL CENTER 13 (Governmental, Other) Governmental CLEVELAND OH 

360085 THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY 10 (Governmental, State) Governmental COLUMBUS OH 
HOSPITAL 

370078 OSU MEDICAL CENTER 10 (Governmental, State) Governmental TULSA OK 

370093 OU MEDICAL CENTER 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit OKLAHOMA CITY OK 

380009 OHSU HOSPITAL AND CLINICS 13 (Governmental, Other) Governmental PORTLAND OR 

390027 TEMPLE UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit PHILADELPHIA PA 

390142 ALBERT EINSTEIN MEDICAL 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit PHILADELPHIA PA 

CENTER 

390174 THOMAS JEFFERSON UNIV. 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit PHILADELPHIA PA 

HOSPITAL 

390223 PRESBYTERIAN MEDICAL CENTER 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit PHILADELPHIA PA 

400015 SAN JUAN MUNICIPAL HOSPITAL 8 (Governmental, City-County) Governmental SANJUAN PR 

8 

131



400061 UNIVERSITY DISCTRICT HOSPITAL 10 (Governmental, State) Governmental SANJUAN PR 

410007 RHODE ISLAND HOSPITAL 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit PROVIDENCE RI 

420004 MEDICAL UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH 10 (Governmental, State) Governmental CHARLESTON SC 

CAROLINA 

420018 PRISMA HEALTH RICHLAND 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit COLUMBIA SC 

HOSPITAL 

440104 ERLANGER MEDI CAL CENTER 11 (Governmental, Hospital Governmental CHATTANOOGA TN 

District) 

440111 METRO NASHVILLE GENERAL 8 (Governmental, City-County) Governmental NASHVILLE TN 

HOSPITAL 

440152 REGIONAL ONE HEALTH 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit MEMPHIS TN 

450015 DALLAS CO. HOSP. DIST. 11 (Governmental, Hospital Governmental DALLAS TX 

District) 

450024 UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF 11 (Governmental, Hospital Governmental EL PASO TX 

EL PASO District) 

450039 TCHD D/B/A JPS HEALTH 11 (Governmental, Hospital Governmental FORT WORTH 

NETWORK District) 

450124 DELL SETON MEDICAL CENTER AT 1 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Church) Nonprofit AUSTIN TX 

THE UNI 

450213 UNIVERSITY HEALTH SYSTEM 11 (Governmental, Hospital Governmental SAN ANTONIO TX 

District) 

450289 HARRIS HEALTH SYSTEM 11 (Governmental, Hospital Governmental BELLAIRE TX 

District) 

9 

132



450686 UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER 11 (Governmental, Hospital Governmental LUBBOCK 
District) 

490032 VCU HEALTH SYSTEM MCV 13 (Governmental, Other) Governmental RICHMOND VA 
HOSPITAL 

500064 HARBORVIEW MEDICAL CENTER 9 (Governmental, County) Governmental SEATTLE WA 

510001 WEST VIRGINIA UNIVERSITY 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit MORGANTOWN WV 
HOSPITALS 

510055 CABELL HUNTINGTON HOSPITAL 2 (Voluntary Nonprofit, Other) Nonprofit HUNTINGTON WV 

10 

133



134



135



136



137



 
 

Thursday, March 28, 2024 
 

Review and Acceptance of the Following Report for the Healthcare for the Homeless 
Program as Required by the United States Department of Health and Human Services 

Which Provides Funding to the Harris County Hospital District d/b/a/Harris Health System 
to Provide Health Services to Persons Experiencing Homelessness under Section 330(h) of 

the Public Health Service Act 
 

 
 
Attached for review and acceptance: 
 

• HCHP Operational Updates  
 
Administration recommends that the Board accept the Healthcare for the Homeless Program Report 
as required by the United States Department of Health and Human Services which provides funding 
to the Harris County Hospital District d/b/a/ Harris Health System to provide health services to persons 
experiencing homelessness under Section 330 (h) of the Public Health Service Act. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Jennifer Small  
Executive Vice President / Ambulatory Care Services  

 

138



Health Care for the Homeless
Monthly Update Report – March 2024

Jennifer Small AuD, MBA, CCC-A, Executive Vice President, Ambulatory Care Services
Tracey Burdine, Director, Health Care for the Homeless Program

139



harrishealth.org 1

Agenda

• Operational Update
ÿ Patient Services

ÿ Patient Satisfaction Report
ÿ Quality Management Report

140



harrishealth.org 2

Patients Served

Telehealth 
Visits

• Telehealth New Patients: 5
• Telehealth Return Patients: 28

New Patient 
Visits

• Adult New Patients: 418  
• Pediatric New Patients: 20  

HRSA Target: 
9775

• Unduplicated Patients: 1,939*
• Total Complete Visits: 3,556* 

* Pending UDS Dashboard Report

141



harrishealth.org 3

Operational Update

841

0
182 106 110 116

290
114 147

496 523

59
0

100
200
300
400
500
600
700
800
900

Monthly Unduplicated Patients by Department (February 2024)*

1054
1070

975
978

1111
1116

1131 1236
1129 1160

1271* 1292*

0
200
400
600
800

1000
1200
1400

September October November December January February

Monthly Unduplicated  Patients (September – February)

2022 - 23

2023 - 24

* Pending UDS Dashboard Report

142



harrishealth.org 4

Operational Update

895

0

217 106
112

171
339

167 147

855 734

63
0

200
400
600
800

1000

Completed Visits by Department (February 2024)*

1924 1867 1745 1661
1908 1932

2170
2411

2131
1866

2370*
2105*

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

September October November December January February

Completed Visits (September  – February)

2022 - 23

2023 - 24

* Pending UDS Dashboard Report

143



harrishealth.org 5

HCHP Patient Satisfaction Trending Data Q4

90.7
82.5 87.383.3 84.2

66.7
50

75

100

Oct Nov Dec

Recommend Provider

2023 2022 Goal 87.8

70.9

57.8

73.569
62

69.6
50

75

100

Oct Nov Dec

Providers Listened

2023 2022 Goal 70.1

90.4

80.4

87.2

76.7 81.9

66.2
50

75

100

Oct Nov Dec

Recommend Facility

2023 2022 Goal 79.6

Q4 Average: 
86

Q4 Average: 
67.4

Q4 Average: 
86.8

144



harrishealth.org 6

HCHP Patient Satisfaction Trending Data Q4

80 81 78.4
73.5.0

68.4.0
71.3

50

75

100

Oct Nov Dec

Nurses Listened

2023 2022 Goal 75.0

79.4

67.5

83.2

68.7

64.1.0
68.5

50

75

100

Oct Nov Dec

Good Communication Providers/Nurses

2023 2022 Goal 70.9

83.5

76.7 74.6
70.1

78.8.0
78.8

50

75

100

Oct Nov Dec

Wait Time

2023 2022 Goal 68.0

Q4 Average: 
79.8

Q4 Average: 
78.2

Q4 Average: 
76.7

145



Health Care for the Homeless
Quality Management Report – QTR 4 2023

LaResa A. Ridge MD, MBA, Health Care for the Homeless Medical Director, 
Ambulatory Care Services

146



harrishealth.org 8

Data Trending 2023 Q4

• = Metrics that are not meeting HCHP goal but meeting the UDS Benchmark (National Average)
**   = Metrics that are not meeting  both the UDS Benchmark and HCHP goal
*** = Metrics that are not meeting the UDS Benchmark but are meeting the HCHP goal

147



harrishealth.org 9

Problem Statement: The following HRSA required quality metrics did not meet goal for Quarter 4 of 2023. Our goal is to surpass both the UDS benchmark and 
our own internal goals. Approval of the corrective action plan is requested.   

Quality Measures Q4 (2023)

Quality Measures UDS Benchmark HHS Goal October November December

Depression Remission at 12 months >17% >20% 0% 0% 0%

Childhood Immunization Status >36% >50% 0% 0% 0%

Plan (Root Cause-Based on analysis of the problem)-WHY? Do-(Action, Responsible Person, Implementation Date)

1. Depression Remission at 12 months 
Fall outs due to 1) The UDS Dashboard is not appropriately analyzing the 
required components to satisfy the standard. 2) PHQ9 was not administered 
within the specified time period required by the required standard. 3) Patients 
are not achieving adequate remission of depression: PHQ9 score must be less 
than 5 to achieve remission
2. Childhood Immunizations Status:
Fall outs due to  1) Patient factors– Due to missed or refused vaccines, the 
children are vaccine-deficient at initial presentation. Note: The Dashboard 
includes all patients every month of their second year.

Responsible Persons: LaResa Ridge, MD (Medical Director), Nurse Manager 

1. Depression Remission at 12 months:  1) Best Practice Alert to address and 
trigger treatment options approved by the Alert User Group on 11/13/2023. 2) 
Local IT team received  guidelines for the build and started creating the alerts  
(Implementation date: February 14, 2024)

2. Childhood Immunizations Status:   1) Staff continues to educate parents on 
the importance of vaccinations. All children that failed to meet the standard has 
received every vaccine for which they are eligible or the parents would allow. 
(Implementation date: Ongoing)

Check (How will you measure effectiveness) ACT (Effective/Ineffective): Adopt, Adapt, or Abandon

Via the monthly UDS Dashboard Report ACTIONS: 
1.) Depression Remission at 12 months: 0%, 0%, 0%, (Adapt) 
2.) Childhood Immunization Status: 0%, 0%, 0%, (Adopt)

* = Metrics that are trending above the UDS Benchmark

148



 
 

Thursday, March 28, 2024 
 

Executive Session 
 

 
 
Review of the Impact of Health and Human Services Commission’s Intent for Contract Announcement 
(STAR & CHIP) and Community Health Choice’s 2023 Financial Performance, Pursuant to Tex. Gov’t 
Code Ann. §551.085. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  
Anna Mateja  
CFO, Community Health Choice 
 

149



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- Pages 150-158 Were Intentionally Left Blank - 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 


	03.28.24 Non-Confidential Board Packet
	DRAFT 2 UNLINKED 03.28.24 Non-Confidential Board Packet
	Agenda
	II. Approval of the Minutes of Previous Meeting
	IV. Public Comment

	20 Intentionally Left Blank
	- Page 20 Was Intentionally Left Blank -

	DRAFT 2 UNLINKED 03.28.24 Non-Confidential Board Packet
	V. Executive Session
	A. Report Regarding Quality of Medical and Healthcare, Pursuant to Tex. Health & Safety Code Ann. §161.032, Tex. Occ. Code Ann. §160.007, and Tex. Occ. Code Ann. §151.002 to Receive Peer Review and/or Medical Committee Report, Including Report of the Medical Executive Board in Connection with


	22 Intentionally Left Blank
	- Page 22 Was Intentionally Left Blank -

	DRAFT 2 UNLINKED 03.28.24 Non-Confidential Board Packet
	V. Executive Session
	B. Medical Executive Board Report and Credentialing Discussion, Pursuant to Tex. Health & Safety Code Ann. §161.032, Tex. Occ. Code Ann. §160.007, and Tex. Occ. Code Ann. §151.002 to Receive Peer Review and/or Medical Committee Report, Including Consideration of Approval of Credentialing


	24-43 Intentionally Left Blank
	- Pages 24-43 Were Intentionally Left Blank -

	DRAFT 2 UNLINKED 03.28.24 Non-Confidential Board Packet
	V. Executive Session
	C. Report Regarding Harris Health System Correctional Health Quality of Medical and Healthcare, Including Credentialing Discussion and Operational Updates, Pursuant to Tex. Health & Safety Code Ann. §161.032, Tex. Occ. Code Ann. §160.007, Tex. Occ. Code Ann. §151.002 and Tex. Gov’t Code Ann.


	45-49 Intentionally Left Blank
	- Pages 45-49 Were Intentionally Left Blank -

	DRAFT 2 UNLINKED 03.28.24 Non-Confidential Board Packet
	VII. General Action Item(s)
	A. General Action Item(s) Related to Quality: Medical Staff
	1. Consideration of Approval of Credentialing Changes for Members of the Harris Health System Medical Staff
	2. Consideration of Approval of Changes to the Nephrology Clinical Privileges

	B. General Action Item(s) Related to Quality: Correctional Health Medical Staff
	1. Consideration of Approval of Credentialing Changes for Members of the Harris Health System Correctional Health Medical Staff


	IX. Strategic Discussion
	A. Harris Health System Strategic Plan Initiatives
	1. Presentation Regarding Innovative Partnership to Build Structures and Processes that Facilitate Timely Enrollment and Access to Care in the Harris Health System for Under-insured Adolescents and Young Adults with Chronic Illness

	B. March Board Committee Meeting Reports

	X. Consent Agenda Items
	A. Consent Purchasing Recommendations
	1. Consideration of Approval of Purchasing Recommendations (Items A1 through A60)

	C. New Consent Items for Board Approval
	1. Consideration of Acceptance of the Harris Health System January 2024 Financial Report Subject to Audit
	2. Consideration of Approval to Enter into a New Interlocal Agreement with Harris County Department of Economic Equity and Opportunity (DEEO) to Provide Wage Rate Compliance Services for Harris Health System Construction Projects
	3. Consideration of Approval to Amend and Renew the Lease with Benjamin Wu for the Sunset Heights Clinic, Located at 1623 Airline, Houston, TX 77009
	4. Consideration of Approval to Convey a Non-Exclusive Utility Easement and Right of Way to Crown Castle Fiber, LLC at Lyndon B. Johnson Hospital, 5656 Kelly St., Houston, TX 77026
	5. Consideration of Approval to Amend the Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery Services Agreement with The University of Texas Health Science Center at Houston
	6. Consideration of Approval to Amend the Administrative Services Agreement Between Harris Health System and Community Health Choice, Inc. and Community Health Choice Texas, Inc.

	D. Consent Reports and Updates to the Board
	1. Updates Regarding Pending State and Federal Legislative and Policy Issues Impacting Harris Health System




	Revised Legislative Matrix
	DRAFT UNLINKED 03.28.24 CONFIDENTIAL Board Packet

	03.28.24 Non-Confidential Board Packet
	DRAFT 2 UNLINKED 03.28.24 Non-Confidential Board Packet
	XI. Item(s) Related to the Health Care for the Homeless Program
	A. Review and Acceptance of the Following Reports for the Health Care for the Homeless Program (HCHP) as Required by the United States Department of Health and Human Services, which Provides Funding to the Harris County Hospital District d/b/a/Harris Health System to Provide Health Services to

	XII. Executive Session
	D. Review of the Impact of Health and Human Services Commission’s Intent for Contract Announcement (STAR & CHIP) and Community Health Choice’s 2023 Financial Performance, Pursuant to Tex. Gov’t Code Ann. §551.085


	150-158 Intentionally Left Blank
	- Pages 150-158 Were Intentionally Left Blank -





